PARATRANSIT, INC.
( MEETING OF THE
' BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Meeting Date and Time:

February 12, 2026 at 2:00 p.m.
Meeting Location:

Ron Brown Conference Center
2501 Florin Road
Sacramento, CA 95822

If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate
in this meeting, please contact by Voice: (916) 429-2009. Requests must be
made as early as possible.

Members of the public may submit public comments via eComment by email
at publiccomment@paratransit.org.

Paratransit’s Mission: To expand mobility and accessibility by providing
innovative programs and services to the Community.

AGENDA
1. Call to Order & Roll Call: (2 minutes)

Directors: Alves, Black, Dawson Rawlings, Heidt, McCleary,
Mulvaney, Tucker

2. Pledge of Allegiance (3 minutes)
3. Public Comment: (5 minutes)

Each person will be allowed three minutes, or less if a large number
of requests are received on a particular subject. After ten minutes


mailto:publiccomment@paratransit.org

of testimony, the Chair may choose to hear any additional testimony
following the Discussion Items.

Please note, under the provisions of the California Government
Code, the Board is prohibited from discussing or taking action on
any item that is not on the agenda. The Board cannot take action
on non-agendized items raised under “Public Comment” until the
matter has been specifically included on the agenda. Those
audience members who wish to address a specific agendized item
are encouraged to offer their public comments during consideration
of that item.

Presentations (15 minutes)

A. Update on Available Grants and Funding Sources and
Reauthorization — Sabrina Drago, Drago Vantage, LLC

Staff Reports (30 minutes)

A. CEO Report
a. Update on Activities and Contracts

B. CFO Report
a. Mid-Year Budget Update
b. Presentation on FY 25 Financial Audit

Consent Calendar (5 minutes)

A. Approve the Minutes of the December 15, 2025 Meeting of the
Board of Directors

B. Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2025 Financial Audit

C. Adopt Resolution 01-26 Authorizing the President and CEO to
prepare, submit and execute Agreements for various upcoming
grant programs from the Sacramento Area Council of
Governments, the State of California, the Federal Transit
Administration, and assorted local programs

D. Adopt Resolution 02-26 Approving the 2026-2029 Title VI Plan
for Paratransit, Inc. and Authorizing the President and CEO to
make administrative adjustments to the plan, as needed



7. Board Team Building Exercise (30 min)
8. Action Items (20 minutes)

A. Nomination and Election of Officers of the Board of Directors for
Calendar Year 2026

B. Discussion on Board Meeting Dates and Times and Adopt the
Board Meeting Schedule for the remainder of 2026 and for 2027

9. Announce Adjournment to Closed Session (20 minutes)

A. Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation
Initiation of litigation pursuant to § 54956.9(d)(4): (1 case)

9. Reconvene to Open Session and Report Action, if any taken
(2 minutes)

10. Board Comments/Reports/Future Agenda Items (5 minutes)

11. Adjourn (1 minute)

The next meeting of the Paratransit Board of Directors will be held on
TBD

Paratransit, Inc.
Ron Brown Conference Center
2501 Florin Road
Sacramento, CA 95822

*Staff Reports are subject to change without prior notice.

ADA COMPLIANCE
If requested, this agenda can be made available in appropriate alternative formats to
persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act
of 1990 and the Federal Rules and Regulations adopted in implementation thereof.
Persons seeking an alternative format should contact the Chief Administrative Officer at
(916) 429-2009 for further information.



Paratransit, Inc.
( Board of Directors Staff Report
\) Agenda Item 5A

AGENDATITLE: Chief Executive Officer's Report

MEETING DATE: February 12, 2026

PREPARED BY: Tiffani M. Scott, President and CEO

PARTNERSHIPS AND OPPORTUNITIES:

| will provide an overview of our on-going partnerships, grants, contracts and
new programs and upcoming opportunities during my oral report

and PowerPoint presentation at the Board meeting.

As always, | remain available for any questions.



Paratransit, Inc.
Board of Directors Staff Report
Agenda Item 5Ba

AGENDA TITLE: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REPORT
MEETING DATE: FEBRUARY 12, 2026

PREPARED BY: LISA M CAPPELLARI, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Receive and file the Chief Financial Officer's Report

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION:

Financial data are from July to December 2025 and operating data are from July 2025
to January 2026.

e CTSA partner agency trips continue to grow, and are now at 16,837 from July
2025 through January 2026. CTSA agency trips are approximately 72% of ADA
trips, and we expect them to keep increasing.

e The CTSA program, where Paratransit, Inc. partners with local social service
agencies, continues providing support with vehicle insurance reimbursement,
maintenance and fleet management services, fuel reimbursement, buses, facility
and parking space, and driver support and training.

e Contracted transportation trips have fallen over the last two years as Paratransit
diversifies its transportation services. There were on average 1,870 contracted
monthly billable hours from July 2025 through January 2026. In addition,
Paratransit provided 4,428 hours of general public shuttle services, trips on
behalf of St. John’s Program for Real Change, various group trips, and food
delivery for the Sacramento Food Bank, where we have delivered 24,200 meals
in FY26 so far.

e The Sacramento Mobility Management program successfully travel trained 40
elderly/disabled passengers and 107 youth so far this fiscal year.

e Year to date Paratransit’s maintenance department completed 1,657 work
orders: 78 of them for CTSA partners, 538 for Paratransit vehicles, 705 for
SacRT Go vehicles, and 336 for outside agencies.



Year to date revenue from Measure A came in 0.4% below budget and
Transportation Development Act (TDA) revenue came in 4% above budget.

The SacRT Go contract revenue is right on budget with the exception of fuel
purchases. Fuel purchase revenues are 15% under budget, but since they are
reimbursable, the corresponding fuel expense is under budget as well.

Grant revenue is coming in slightly slower than budget because we have not
obtained several grant agreements yet but is likely to make a recovery by the end
of the fiscal year.

Contracted services revenue is running slower than budgeted, primarily because
of the driver shortage earlier in the year, which also causes personnel expense to
be lower than budgeted. Now that we are fully staffed with drivers, we expect
contracted services revenue to rebound.

Paratransit’s maintenance fees and diversified services revenues are running
near budget however fuel sales are about 20% below budget due to lower fuel
prices. Since this is a reimbursable expense, it does not affect net income.

On the expense side, personnel expense, which includes wages, payroll taxes,
benefits, and workers compensation, is under budget by $537,000, due mostly to
the driver shortage earlier in the year.

Fleet operations expense (fuel, vehicle insurance, and vehicle maintenance
parts) is under budget by $260,600, largely because fuel prices have stabilized
and vehicle insurance rates came in lower than expected. Nonpersonnel
expense (services, office expense, utilities, travel) is $203,000 lower than budget,
due to fiscal tightening in nearly every area. Overall, Paratransit’s net income for
the first six months of the fiscal year is $464,000.

If you have any questions or comments about this Performance Report please contact
me at 916-429-2009 ext.7234 or LisaC@paratransit.org.

FISCAL IMPACT:

ATTATCHMENTS:

February 2026 CFO Report
December 2025 Income Statement
December 2025 Balance Sheet



PARATRANSIT, INC.

FINANCIAL REPORT

=0 pi pi  pi

February 2026




Consolidated Transportation Services Agency

CTSA Trips Provided
July 2025 — January 2026

ACC 17,865 11%

Elk Grove Adult Community Training 39,765 23%

Easter Seals Society 11,088 7%
St. John’s Program for Real Change 2,561 2%
Sutter Senior Care 33,527 20%
UCP of Sacramento & Northern CA 64,032 37%

Total CTSA Trips 168,837 100% e
i=F pI  pl  pl




Total Hours: Alta, Food, Shuttle, Misc.
July 2025 through Jan 2026

3,000

2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
W Alta ®mFood ™ Group M Shuttle




Sacramento Mobility Management
July 2025 —Jan 2026

e Travel Training for Seniors & Persons with Disabilities
eSuccessful trainees: FY26: 40 trainees

eTravel Training for Youth
«Successful trainees: FY26: 107 trainees




Vehicle Maintenance Operations
July 2025 to January 2026

Work Orders
Labor Hours 2,164 2,072 599

Parts Cost S101,342 S100,549 27,384 S229,275

Total Cost $492,585 $506,220 152,929 $1,151,734




FY26 Maintenance Work Orders and Labor Hours
1,200
1,000
800
600
400
200
0

~

—Work Orders —Labor Hours pi | pi | pi



Work Orders: July 2025 — January 2026

Paratransit

SacRT Go Paratransit Services

Outside Agencies

CTSA Partners

Total Work Orders




FY26 Revenue: Budget versus Actuals
December 2025 (thousands of dollars)

Measure A S1,263 S1,258 S5 -0.4%
TDA 647 673 26 4%

Grants 784 498 -286 -36%

Contract Transp. 1,402 1,022 -381 -27%

SacRT Go Contract 891 825 -66 -71%
Maintenance/Fuel 723 647 -76 -11%

Other Revenue 308 291 -17 -6%

Capital Revenue 0 20 20 -

Total Revenue $6,018  $5233  -$785  -13% P PP




FY26 Expense: Budget versus Actuals
December 2025 (thousands of dollars)

Personnel S3,483  $2,945 -S537
Fleet Operations 1,399 1,139 -260
Non Personnel 825 623 -203
Capital Projects 62 62 0

Total Expense S5,769 S4,769  -S1,000
Net Income S464

pi  pi  pi

10




Thank You!




PARATRANSIT, INC.

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

12/31/2025
UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash
Accounts Receivable
Grants Receivable
Inventory
Deposits and Prepaid Expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land Assets
Grant Equipment
Non-Grant Equipment
SBITA Asset
TOTAL COST
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Less SBITA Accumulated Amortization
Net Capital Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

1,035,108
870,687
1,991,401
109,983
468,481

4,475,660

600,000
9,463,953
6,786,962

217,954

17,068,870
(13,362,883)

(87,182)

3,618,805

8,094,465

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll & Benefits
Sales Tax Payable
Lease/Notes Payable
SBITA Short Term Debt
Deferred Revenue
Other Payables
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long Term Liabilities
SBITA Liability
TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND EQUITY
Contributed Capital
Restricted for grant administration
Retained Earnings (Loss)
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

544,447
196,976
4,011
206,537
43,076
508,157

(11,852)

1,491,351

2,374,206
97,440

2,471,646

3,962,997

673,972
13,003
3,444,493

4,131,468

8,094,465



REVENUE

OPERATING REVENUE:

Measure A Elderly & Disabled Transportatio

Measure A Neighborhood Shuttle

TDA 4.5

SacRT Go Facility & Parking

SacRT Go Maintenance

SacRT Go Fueling

FY24 SACOG TDM Mode Shift

FY25 SACOG - Mobility Management
FY25 SACOG - Shuttle operating revenue
FY25 SACOG - Preventive Maintenance
SACOG - AoPP

ICAM Grant

Farmers' Market Shuttle

State and Local Grants

Contracted Services

Maintenance Fees

Fuel Sales

East Bay Paratransit

Solano Transportation Authority Eligibility
Travel Training Revenue

Diversified Services

Applied to Capital Projects

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

CAPITAL REVENUE:
SACOG - Mob. Options Vehicles
SACOG - Cameras
SACOG - Bus Stops
5310 Grant - 15 Buses
Applied Operating Revenue
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets
TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE
TOTAL REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSES

PERSONNEL:
Transportation Operations:
Vehicle Operators

Training Center
Operations Administration
Dispatch Center
Maintenance Operations
Administration
Information Technology
Mobility Management
Fringe Benefits
Workers' Compensation
TOTAL PERSONNEL

FLEET OPERATIONS:
Fuel
Insurance
Cost of Parts & Sublet Service
TOTAL FLEET OPERATIONS

NONPERSONNEL:
Professional Services
Contracted Staffing
Outside Services
Rent/Repair
Office Expense
Interest Expense
Telephone/Utilities
Tax/License/Dues/Permits
Travel
Professional Development
Land Donation Expense
TOTAL NONPERSONNEL

TOTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSE

CAPITAL PROJECTS:
Florin Road Facility
Vehicle Acquisition Project
SACOG - Mob. Options Vehicles
SACOG - Cameras
SACOG - Bus Stops
5310 Grant - 15 Buses
Sign on Front of Building
Facility Reserve
Office Furniture & Equipment
Network & Telecommunications
Maintenance Equipment
Miscellaneous Capital Projects
TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS

TOTAL OPERATING AND CAPITAL EXPEM

NET INCOME (LOSS)

PARATRANSIT, INC. - CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSE AS AT 12/31/2025

MONTHLY MONTHLY MONTHLY YEARLY Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D$ Y-T-D %

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE _ VARIANCE
181,622 189,947 8,324 2,279,360 1,162,383 1,159,261 (3,122) 0.3%
15,681 16,400 719 196,800 100,360 98,400 (1,960) 2.0%
101,043 103,045 2,002 1,268,087 646,674 672,539 25,865 4.0%
6,024 6,300 276 75,600 38,553 37,800 (753) 2.0%
77,724 80,703 2,979 975,432 497,431 484,216 (13,215) 2.7%
55415 40,571 (14,843) 695,453 354,653 303,084 (51,570) -14.5%
7,968 - (7,968) 100,000 50,996 - (50,996) -100.0%
29,167 - (29,167) 350,000 175,000 145,833 (29,167) 16.7%
37,500 37,500 - 450,000 225,000 225,000 - 0.0%
16,667 16,667 - 200,000 100,000 100,000 - 0.0%
7,968 - (7,968) 100,000 50,996 - (50,996) -100.0%
10,709 - (10,709) 134,400 68,539 - (68,539) -100.0%
592 - (592) 7,427 3788 27,393 23,606 623.2%
15,578 - (15,578) 195,500 99,697 - (99,697) -100.0%
219,124 158,289 (60,835) 2,750,000 1,402,390 1,021,777 (380,613) 27.1%
56,210 48,277 (7,932) 705,429 359,741 365,858 6,118 1.7%
56,697 40,715 (15,982) 711,543 362,859 280,699 (82,160) 22.6%
23,139 24,200 1,061 290,400 148,092 145,200 (2,892) 2.0%
16,115 16,854 739 202,245 103,137 101,123 (2,014) 2.0%
888 1,423 535 11,143 5,682 8713 3,030 53.3%
3,371 1,689 (1,681) 72,301 51,572 36,220 (15,352) -29.8%
(48,154) (9,588) 38,566 (604,329) (308,184) (61,511) 246,673 -80.0%
891,046 772,991 (118,055) 11,166,791 5699359 5,151,604 (547,756) 9.6%
- - - 160,000 - - - 0.0%
- - - 370,000 - - - 0.0%
- - - 100,000 - - - 0.0%
- - - 2,250,000 - - - 0.0%
48,154 9,588 (38,566) 604,329 308,184 61,511 (246,673) -80.0%
- - - - - 19,605 19,605 0.0%
48,154 9,588 (38,566) 3,484,329 308,184 81,116 (227,068) 73.7%
939,199 782,579 (156,620) 14,651,120 6,007,543 5,232,720 (774,823) 12.9%
79,400 62,580 (16,820) 996,472 508,161 378,277 (129,884) -25.6%
5,289 - (5,289) 66,375 33,848 3,562 (30,286) -89.5%
26,834 30,607 3,774 336,762 171,735 168,132 (3,603) 2.1%
33,662 36,843 3,181 422,459 215,437 209,406 (6,032) 2.8%
76,564 83,573 7,009 960,877 490,009 480,620 (9,389) -1.9%
74,672 73,991 (682) 937,138 477,903 502,063 24,160 5.1%
17,071 15,031 (2,040) 214,242 109,255 95,800 (13,455) 12.3%
46,512 32,013 (14,499) 583,720 297,674 189,200 (108,474) -36.4%
168,492 129,697 (38,795) 2,114,577 1,078,350 839,163 (239,187) 22.2%
15,468 12,070 (3,398) 201,081 100,540 79,222 (21,318) 21.2%
543,963 476,405 (67,558) 6,833,701 3482912 2945444 (537,469) 15.4%
142,666 100,747 (41,919) 1,790,456 913,061 741,444 (171,617) -18.8%
47,221 26,900 (20,321) 592,622 302,214 214,413 (87,801) 29.1%
28,683 28,543 (140) 359,976 183,573 183,323 (250) 0.1%
218,570 156,190 (62,380) 2,743,054 1,398,848 1,139,180 (259,668) 18.6%
42,826 32,144 (10,682) 537,466 274,086 203,828 (70,258) -25.6%
4,303 1,260 (3,043) 54,000 27,538 5,339 (22,199) -80.6%
18,872 15,893 (2,979) 236,840 120,779 89,496 (31,283) -25.9%
5018 1,369 (3,649) 62,975 32,115 11,156 (20,959) -65.3%
10,258 7,221 (3,037) 160,026 96,171 67,232 (28,939) -30.1%
5,164 10,800 5,636 62,649 31,940 37,583 5,643 17.7%
24,993 17,784 (7,209) 313,657 159,953 125,399 (34,553) 21.6%
8,042 5213 (2,830) 100,928 51,469 35,994 (15,475) -30.1%
1,275 2,672 1,397 16,003 8,161 10,165 2,004 24.6%
3,625 6,289 2,664 45,492 23,199 36,459 13,260 57.2%
- - - - - - - 0.0%
124,375 100,644 (23,731) 1,590,036 825,411 622,652 (202,759) 24.6%
886,909 733,239 (153,670) 11,166,791 5,707,171 4,707,276 (999,895) 17.5%
9,588 9,588 - 114,377 56,573 56,573 - 0.0%
- - - - - - - 0.0%
- - - 200,000 - - - 0.0%
- - - 500,000 - - - 0.0%
- - - 100,000 - - - 0.0%
- - - 2,250,000 - - - 0.0%
- - - 15,000 - - - 0.0%
- - - 256,952 - - - 0.0%
- - - 25,000 - - - 0.0%
- - - 10,000 3912 3,912 - 0.0%
- - - 13,000 1,026 1,026 - 0.0%
- - - - - - - 0.0%
0,588 9,588 - 3,484,329 61,511 61,511 - 0.0%
896,497 742,827 (153,670) 14,651,120 5768682 4,768,787 (999,895) 17.3%
42,703 39,753 (2,950) 0 238,861 763,933 225,072 94.2%

2/5/2026 5:48 PM



Paratransit, Inc.
Board of Directors Staff Report
Agenda Item 5B(b)

AGENDA TITLE:  RECEIVE AND FILE THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025
FINANCIAL AUDIT

MEETING DATE: FEBRUARY 12, 2026

PREPARED BY: LISA M. CAPPELLARI, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Receive and file the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Financial Audit.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION:

In November of 2025, Richardson and Company, a regional CPA firm, audited
Paratransit, Inc.’s financial records. As of June 30, 2025, Paratransit, Inc. had a total of
$8.2 million in assets including $4.2 million in capital assets such as vehicles and
equipment, $4.6 million in liabilities, and a net position of $3.6 million.

Paratransit, Inc. has two long-term liabilities with Five Star Bank: a facility loan and a
vehicle loan. The balance of the facility loan as of June 2025 is $1.7 million, and the
balance of the vehicle loan is $0, as it was paid off on October 2024.

Paratransit, Inc. is required to maintain a fare revenue to operating expense ratio of 5%
in order to be eligible for Transportation Development Act (TDA) funding. As of June
30, 2025, Paratransit, Inc.’s fare revenue ratio is 35%.

During fiscal year 2024-2025, Paratransit, Inc. received $184,000 in federal grants:
$23,000 from the US Department of Agriculture and $161,000 in American Rescue Plan
Act funds. This amount is below the $750,000 threshold and therefore we did not
require a Single Audit.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None



ATTATCHMENTS:

1. Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Financial Audit



PARATRANSIT, INC.

Audited Financial Statements, Other Supplementary
Information and Compliance Report

June 30, 2025



(This page intentionally left blank.)



PARATRANSIT, INC.

Audited Financial Statements, Other Supplementary
Information and Compliance Report

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Audited Financial Statements

Independent AUItOr’s REPOTt.......cuiiiiiiieriieiieciecieete ettt seeebe b e esbe e beeseaesebesebeesseenseas
Balance Sheets — Statutory BasiS.......ccuevierierieiieeiieiieiiesienee e e ste et ee e ssaesnsesnseensees

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position —

StAtULOTY BaASIS ...uviiiiiiiiiieiiiiesiee ettt ettt e et e e seteeeteeetbeeebeeesbeessseessseeessseessseeesseessseeaseeanes
Statements of Cash Flows — Statutory BasiS.......ccceecviivciiiecieeiiie et
Notes to Statutory Basis Financial Statements ............ccoeeveviiriiieniienieneeniesieeie e

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

(UNAUAIEEA) .evvveeerieeeiie ettt ettt et e e et e e tae e s beeestbeeseseeessaeessseesssaeessseesssaeensseessseesssenns
Schedule of Contributions to the OPEB Plan (Unaudited) ............ccoeevrrrieviieniienieereere e

Other Supplementary Information

Independent Auditor’s Report on Other Supplementary Information ..........c.cccceeeveeevvecveennennen.
Schedule of Expenses by FUNCHON ........ociiiiiiiiiiiieiieieieee ettt

Compliance Report

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards, the Transportation Development Act and Other State

Program GUIAEIINES.........cc.eiiiiiiiiie ettt e ve e e aee e s ebeeeteeessbeeeesaeesseesenas



(This page intentionally left blank.)



550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210

IC H A R D S O N Sacramento, California 95825
& COMPANY u» Teorn: 10 ST

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Paratransit, Inc.
Sacramento, California

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying statutory-basis financial statements of Paratransit, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the related notes to the financial
statements, as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, because Paratransit, Inc. is required to prepare its financial statements on the basis of
accounting discussed in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph, the financial statements referred to in
the first paragraph do not present fairly, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted for
nonprofit organizations, the financial position of Paratransit, Inc. as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, or the
results of its operations or its cash flows for the fiscal years then ended.

However, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Paratransit, Inc. as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the results of
its operations and cash flows for the fiscal years then ended, on the basis of accounting described in Note
A.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and Government Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are required to be independent of Paratransit and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified and unmodified audit opinions.

As described in Note A, these financial statements were prepared in conformity with the accounting
principles prescribed by the Transportation Development Act, which requires Paratransit, Inc. to prepare
its financial statements in the same manner as an enterprise fund in a governmental agency. This method
follows accounting principles generally accepted for governmental agencies, but is a comprehensive basis
of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted for nonprofit organizations.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



To the Board of Directors
Paratransit, Inc.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Paratransit, Inc.’s ability to continue
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Paratransit Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Paratransit Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Paratransit, Inc. has omitted Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.



To the Board of Directors
Paratransit, Inc.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedule of
changes in the total OPEB liability and related ratios and schedule of contributions to the OPEB plan, as
described in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. The schedule
of changes in the total OPEB liability and related ratios and schedule of contributions to the OPEB plan are
not a part of the basic financial statements, but are required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquires, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during the audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 9, 2026
on our consideration of the Paratransit Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters,
including the Transportation Development Act and other state program guidelines. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Paratransit’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Ao 4, Crmpary, LiP

January 9, 2026



PARATRANSIT, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS — STATUTORY BASIS

June 30, 2025 and 2024

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - Note B
Accounts and grants receivable - Note C
Inventory
Deposits and prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - Note D

Restricted investments - Note D
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment in partnership

Capital assets, net - Note E
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related benefits
Other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities — Note G
Deferred gain on investment in partnership
Other postemployment benefits liability - Note I

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for grant administration
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

2024

2025 Restated
310,832 $ 500,420
1,509,868 2,618,614
110,852 89,455
419,321 482,383
2,350,873 3,690,872
13,003 13,001
- 227,534
13,003 240,535
1,650,324 112,068
4,200,420 5,744,814
5,850,744 5,856,882
8214620 $ 9,788,289
721,364  $ 588,303
178,204 173,182
25,688 47,057
804,043 747,025
1,729,299 1,555,567
2,126,269 2,123,268
725,616 -
- 240,738
4,581,184 3,919,573
2,319,711 3,616,753
13,003 13,001
1,300,722 2,238,962
3,633,436 5,868,716
8214620 $ 9,788,289

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



PARATRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION — STATUTORY BASIS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

2024
2025 Restated
OPERATING REVENUES
Fares — Note H $ 2,468,588 3,128,876
Diversified transportation services 1,918,361 2,109,115
Maintenance fees 1,388,675 1,227,759
Mobility training 11,464 15,612
Destinations Mobility 3,168 38,122
Advertising 3,200 3,200
Other 264,229 32,754
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 6,057,685 6,555,438
OPERATING EXPENSES
Elderly and disabled transportation 8,261,875 8,953,737
Diversified services and outside maintenance 3,679,737 3,639,426
Mobility training services 535,931 437,135
Destinations Mobility 11,294 43,942
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 12,488,837 13,074,240
NET LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (6,431,152) (6,518,802)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Measure A Funds 2,322,035 2,493,523
Local Transportation Funds - Sacramento Area COG 1,267,594 1,395,130
Federal grants 120,001 250,000
Partnership investment gain/(loss) 80,324
Gain on disposal of capital assets 405,919 35,756
Interest income (D) 2,474
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 4,195,872 4,176,883
NET (LOSS) INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS (2,235,280) (2,341,919)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Measure A funds 1,159,000
TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 1,159,000
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (2,235,280) (1,182,919)
Net position at beginning of year 5,868,716 7,417,031
Restatement (365,396)
Net position at beginning of year - as restated 5,868,716 7,051,635
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $ 3,633,436 § 5,868,716

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5



PARATRANSIT, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — STATUTORY BASIS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

2024
2025 Restated
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers $ 6,071,889 $ 6,679,012
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (5,010,554) (5,313,293)
Cash paid to employees for services (6,033,024) (6,489,133)
NET CASH FLOWS USED FOR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (4,971,689) (5,123,414)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Nonoperating grants and subsidies 4,804,172 5,008,885
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 4,804,172 5,008,885
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Grants received for capital acquisitions - 1,159,000
Acquisition of capital assets (1,528) (1,265,558)
Payments on long-term debt (247,353) (371,888)
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 32,211 43,840
NET CASH FLOWS USED FOR CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (216,670) (434,606)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from restricted investments - (2,474)
Withdrawal of restricted investments 227,534
Purchase of partnership investment (32,932) (67,283)
Interest earnings (D) 2,474
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED/(USED)
BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 194,601 (67,283)
NET DECREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (189,586) (616,418)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 513,421 1,129,839
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 323,835 § 513,421
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
TO THE BALANCE SHEETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 310,832 § 500,420
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 13,003 13,001

$ 323,835 § 513,421

(Continued)
6



PARATRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — STATUTORY BASIS (Continued)

For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

RECONCILIATION OF NET LOSS FROM OPERATIONS
TO NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss from operations
Adjustments to reconcile net loss from operations
to net cash used for operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts and grants receivable
Inventory
Deposits and prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related benefits
Other current liabilities
Other postemployment benefit liability
Legal claims liability
Compensated absences
NET CASH FLOWS USED FOR

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF
CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for interest expense

Noncash transactions
Asset additions using long-term liabilities
Contribution of land in exchange for investment

in partnership

Partnership gain/(loss)

2025

2024
Restated

$  (6,431,152)

1,220,246

14,204
(21,397)
63,062
133,061
5,022
(21,369)
(240,738)
309,998
(2,626)

$ (6,518,802)

1,249,723

123,574
24,693
(150,930)
53,858
15,669
35,025
15,877

27,899

$  (4,971,689)

$ (5,123,414)

$ 85,051
§ 1,425,000
$ 80,324

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 83,623

$ (217,954



PARATRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO STATUTORY BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2025 and 2024

NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization: Paratransit, Inc. (Paratransit) is a nonprofit organization that provides transportation services
for numerous organizations. Paratransit fulfills two major transportation functions in the Sacramento area:
1) that of the provider of specialized transportation service to the elderly and disabled, and 2) that of the
designated Consolidated Transportation Service Agency (CTSA). As a CTSA, Paratransit is responsible
for the coordination and consolidation of social-service agency transportation programs in order to
maximize the use of their transportation dollars. Paratransit has expanded its services to include specialized
transportation and maintenance services for nontraditional markets such as suburban, residential, business
and industrial parks, transportation management associations, business district associations and public
agencies. Paratransit also partners with Meals on Wheels and the Sacramento Food Bank to provide food
delivery services.

The financial statements include the financial activities of PI Housing Solutions, Inc. (PIHS), a nonprofit
public benefit corporation. PI was formed May 23, 2023 to engage in charitable activities within the
meaning of section 501(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code related to holding title to property, collecting
income therefrom, and turning over the entire amount thereof, less expenses, to Paratransit. PIHS is
reported as a blended component unit of Paratransit because Paratransit’s Board of Directors is also the
governing body of PIHS. Paratransit has a residual interest in any property held by PIHS upon its
dissolution.

In June 2024, PIHS entered into a limited partnership agreement with 7141 Woodbine Avenue LP to
acquire, own and maintain a multifamily housing development with approximately one hundred eight (108)
living units for rental to low-income persons and families. PIHS has a 67.785% ownership interest and a
50% interest in profits. PIHS contributed land with a value of $1,425,000 and received a $145,000 credit
for pre-development costs for a total initial contribution of $1,570,000. The Land was transferred with a
grant in July 2024. The land disposition resulted in a gain of $1,070,550 of which $725,616 was deferred
and $344,934 was recognized in the current year. PIHS is a limited partner and has no conduct or control
of the partnership business and will account for its investment under the equity method. The liability of
each Limited Partner is restricted and limited to the amount of the actual capital contributions made by such
Limited Partner. See Note O for restatement and reclassification of prior pre-development costs.

Basis of Presentation: The financial statements of Paratransit have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government
units. To comply with the Transportation Development Act (TDA) and the Uniform System of Accounts
for Public Transit Operators, Paratransit must report its operations in the form of an enterprise fund of a
governmental agency. Therefore, Paratransit follows GAAP as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. In addition, Paratransit follows Financial
Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.



PARATRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO STATUTORY BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2025 and 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Accounting: Enterprise funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds
are included on the balance sheet. Net position is segregated into amounts invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, restricted and amounts unrestricted. Enterprise fund-type operating statements present
increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total position.

Paratransit uses the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Grant revenue is recognized when program
expenditures are incurred in accordance with program guidelines. When such funds are received they are
recorded as unearned revenues until earned. TDA funds are recorded when all eligibility requirements have
been met.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
Paratransit are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost
of services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is Paratransit’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Paratransit is funded through various grant and other funding agreements with local and federal
governmental agencies that provide for returning of excess funds, which are standard in the public transit
industry in California. Eligibility for funding is generally restricted to qualifying expenditures, which
means that the funds have to be spent in order to be earned. Any excess funding received would be recorded
as unearned revenue due to the grant terms or restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: For the purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined
as those amounts included in the balance sheets captions “Cash and cash equivalents” and “Restricted cash
and cash equivalents” and consist of amounts held in checking accounts.

Inventories: Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, determined by the moving average
method. Inventories consist of tires, fuel and repair parts.

Capital Assets: Capital assets are stated at cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at the acquisition
value, which is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential in an
orderly market transaction at the acquisition date. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial cost of
$500 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Provision is made for depreciation by the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the individual assets, which generally is five to thirty
years. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Subscription-based technology arrangement (subscription) assets are recognized at the subscription
commencement date and represent Paratransit’s right to use the underlying asset for the subscription term.
Subscription assets are measured at initial value of the subscription liability plus any payments made to the
vendor at the commencement of the subscription term, less any subscription incentives received from the



PARATRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO STATUTORY BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2025 and 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

vendor at or before the commencement of the subscription term, plus any capitalizable initial
implementation costs necessary to place the subscription asset into service. Subscription assets are
amortized over the subscription term or useful life of the underlying asset using the straight-line method,
which is 5 years. Paratransit’s subscriptions are discussed in Note H.

Investment in Partnership: Paratransit uses the equity method of accounting for its investment in
unconsolidated entities, which records income based on its share of partnership profit or loss. The equity
method is used because Paratransit has significant influence but does not control the partnership. Paratransit
takes no part in the partnership day-to-day business, and its liability in the partnership is restricted and
limited to the amount of actual capital contributions made. The total investment in partnership at June 30,
2025 consists of the investment in the 7141 Woodbine Avenue LP related to a multifamily housing
development, which had total assets of $13,920,633, total liabilities of $11,460,988, and $2,434,645 of
equity.

Compensated Absences: Paratransit’s personnel policy allows employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacation and sick leave. Unused accrued vacation time will be paid to employees upon separation from
Paratransit’s service, subject to a vesting policy. Sick leave is accrued for the portion expected to be used
for time-off. The cost of vacation and sick leave is recognized in the period earned.

Income Tax Status: Paratransit is a tax exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the United States
Internal Revenue Code and Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code and,
accordingly, is not subject to federal or state income taxes except on unrelated business income. Paratransit
receives unrelated business income from providing advertising. However, such income is offset with net
operating losses carried forward from the prior year. As a result, no income tax expenses were recorded
for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024. Paratransit is not classified as a private foundation.

PI Housing Solutions, Inc. is a tax exempt organization under Section 501(c)(2) of the United States Internal
Revenue Code and Section 23701(h) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code and, accordingly, is not
subject to federal or state income taxes.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made to net investment in capital assets and
unrestricted net position for the year ended June 30, 2024 to conform to the presentation as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. The reclassifications had no effect on total net position or the change in
net position.

NOTE B — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of balances held in financial
institutions. Paratransit maintains cash balances at two banks, which are federally insured up to $250,000
each. At June 30, 2025 and 2024, Paratransit had uninsured bank balances of $141,413 and $362,305,
respectively.

10



PARATRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO STATUTORY BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2025 and 2024

NOTE C - ACCOUNTS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Receivable balances consist of the following at June 30:

2025 2024
Trade receivables $ 544072 $§ 558276
Grants and other intergovernmental receivables 995,796 2,090,338
Allowance for doubtful accounts (30,000) (30,000)

$ 1,509,868 $ 2,618,614

NOTE D — RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents: Paratransit has bank deposits that are restricted for Caltrans local
match at June 30, 2025 and 2024.

Restricted Investments: Paratransit also held a single premium deferred annuity from an insurance
company in the amount of $227,534 at June 30, 2024 that is restricted to fund postemployment healthcare
benefits (OPEB), as described in Note I. Although the owner of the contract is a retired employee whose
OPEB benefits the contract is restricted to pay, Paratransit is the beneficiary of the contract so it is
considered to be a Paratransit investment. The retired employee passed away during the year ended June
30, 2025 and Paratransit received a distribution of $227,533.

The investment is reported as an unallocated insurance contract, which is reported at the contract value
under paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 59. The contract value is defined as the initial premium, less
withdrawals and surrender charges, plus interest earned. The annuity’s contract period ends in ten years
and has a fixed guaranteed interest rate of 3.82% for five years from the date the initial premium was paid
on July 26, 2018. The interest resets at a new guaranteed rate after the five-year guarantee period, which
will not decline below 1%. The contract is subject to yearly withdrawal limits of 10% to avoid surrender
charges and a market value adjustment, except within 30 days before the end of the guarantee period when
no surrender charge or market value adjustment would apply. Surrender charges begin at 8% in the initial
year and decline 1% per year until the end of the contract period. The minimum cash surrender value of
the contract is 87.5% of the initial premium, less withdrawals plus interest credited. If the assets were
returned to Paratransit under contract provisions, the amount would no longer be considered restricted for
OPEB benefits.

The investment is not subject to ratings by a nationally recognized investment rating organization and is
not subject to categorization under GASB Statement No. 72.

11



PARATRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO STATUTORY BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2025 and 2024

NOTE E — CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity was as follows for the years ended June 30:

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2024 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2025

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land $ 924736 $ (324,736) $ 600,000
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 924,736 (324,736) 600,000
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Building 5,758,885 5,758,885
Motor vehicles and related equipment 8,804,307 (403,228) 8,401,079
Office furniture and equipment 1,756,732 (12,923) 1,743,809
Maintenance equipment 447802 $ 1,528 (31,241) 418,089
Subscription assets 217,954 217,954
Total capital assets being depreciated 16,985,680 1,528 (447,392) 16,539,816
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building (4,767,778) (159,616) (4,927,394)
Motor vehicles and related equipment (5,287,922) (969,076) 403,228 (5,853,770)
Office furniture and equipment (1,638,109) (35,646) 11,983 (1,661,772)
Maintenance equipment (436,702) (3,817) 31,241 (409,278)
Amortization (35,091) (52,091) (87,182)
Total accumulated depreciation (12,165,602) (1,220,246) 446,452 (12,939,396)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 4,820,078 (1,218,718) (940) 3,600,420
Capital assets, net $ 5744814 § (1,218,718) $ (325,676) $ 4,200,420
Balance at Balance at

July 1, 2023 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2024

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land $ 924,736 $ 924,736
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 924,736 924,736
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Building 5,758,885 5,758,885
Motor vehicles and related equipment 9,088,767 $ 1,231,217 $§ (1,515,677) 8,804,307
Office furniture and equipment 2,004,400 20,602 (268,270) 1,756,732
Maintenance equipment 434,062 13,740 447,802
Subscription assets 217,954 217,954
Total capital assets being depreciated 17,286,114 1,483,513 (1,783,947) 16,985,680
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building (4,493,248) (274,530) (4,767,778)
Motor vehicles and related equipment (5,922,467) (881,131) 1,515,676 (5,287,922)
Office furniture and equipment (1,847,594) (50,701) 260,186 (1,638,109)
Maintenance equipment (428,432) (8,270) (436,702)
Subscription assets (35,091) (35,091)
Total accumulated depreciation (12,691,741) (1,249,723) 1,775,862 (12,165,602)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 4,594,373 233,790 (8,085) 4,820,078
Capital assets, net $ 5519,109 $§ 233,790 $ (8,085) $ 5,744,814

12



PARATRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO STATUTORY BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2025 and 2024

NOTE F — LINE OF CREDIT

Paratransit had a line of credit for $1,000,000 that expired December 1, 2024. The interest rate was variable
and equal to the bank’s index rate plus 0.75%, with a floor of 4%. The interest rate at June 30, 2024 was
8.5%. Interest only payments were due monthly and all outstanding principal and unpaid accrued interest
was due in full at maturity. The loan was secured by inventory, equipment, real property and buses. No
amounts were due on the line of credit at June 30, 2024.

NOTE G — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt consists of the following direct borrowings at June 30:

Balance at Balance at
Original June 30, June 30,
Debt 2025 2024

FIVE STAR BANK FACILITY LOAN

Entered into in December 2020 to refinance an earlier

loan used to purchase the Paratransit building, and

perform repairs on the facility. The interest rate is a

fixed, tax exempt rate of 3.66%. Monthly principal and

interest payments of $14,731 are due through September

1, 2037. The loan is secured by Paratransit’s facility,

located at 2501 Florin Road, Sacramento, CA. $ 2,250,000 $ 1,740,193 $ 1,850,410

FIVE STAR BANK EQUIPMENT LOAN

Entered into in December 2020 to refinance the purchase

of fifteen vehicles. The interest rate is 3.22% through

October 1, 2024. Monthly principal and interest

payments of $22,251 are due through October 1, 2024.

The loan is secured by fifteen Paratransit vehicles. 1,633,301 - 90,505

$ 3,883,301 $ 1,740,193 $ 1,940915

Both loans have default provisions that allow Five Star Bank to take possession of property held as security.

13



PARATRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO STATUTORY BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2025 and 2024

NOTE G — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)
Long-term debt activity for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 was as follows:

Balance
June 30, 2024 Balance Within
Restated Additions  Reductions June 30,2025 One Year

Long-term debt:

Mortgage loan $ 1,850,410 $ (110217) $ 1,740,193 § 114,377

Vehicle loan 90,505 (90,505)
Long-term debt 1,940,915 (200,722) 1,740,193 114,377

Other long-term liabilities:

Compensated absences 742,232 $  (2,627) 739,605 513,258
Subscription liabilities 187,146 (46,630) 140,516 43,076
Legal claim 309,998 309,998 133,332
Other long-term liabilities: 929,378 307,371 (46,630) 1,190,119 689,666

$ 2,870,293 $ 307,371 $ (247,352) $ 2,930,312 $ 804,043

Balance Balance
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2024 Within
Restated Additions Reductions Restated One Year

Long-term debt:

Mortgage loan $ 1,947,646 $ (97236) $ 1850410 $ 110217
Vehicle loan 334,349 (243,844) 90,505 90,505
Long-term debt 2,281,995 (341,080) 1,940,915 200,722

Other long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences 714333 $ 27,899 742,232 507,309
Subscription liabilities 217,954 (30,808) 187,146 38,994
Other long-term liabilities: 714,333 245,853 (30,808) 929,378 546,303

$ 2996328 § 245853 § (371,888) $§ 2,870,293 $§ 747,025

Subscription Agreements: In July 2023, Paratransit determined that a number of subscription agreements
for software met the definition of a subscription that should be capitalized under GASB Statement No. 96.
The agreements renew automatically until Paratransit cancels the agreements. Paratransit paid $42,650 in
principal and interest through June 30, 2024. The subscription assets had an original cost of $217,954 and
accumulated amortization of $35,091 at June 30, 2024. The subscriptions were discounted at 8.25%.

14



PARATRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO STATUTORY BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2025 and 2024

NOTE G — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

The maturities of long-term debt and subscription agreements consist of the following at June 30, 2024:

Year

Ending Long-Term Debt Subscription Liability

June 30: _ Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2026 $ 114377 $ 62,649 $ 177,026 $ 43,076 $ 10365 $ 53441
2027 118,694 58,331 177,025 46,735 6,707 53,442
2028 123,028 53,997 177,025 50,705 2,737 53,442
2029 127,818 49207 177,025 - - -
2030 132,643 44,383 177,026 - - -

2031-2038 1,123,633 159,804 1,283,437 - - -

Total  $1,740,193  $428371  $2,168,564 $140,516 ~$ 19809  $ 160,325

NOTE H - FARE REVENUE RATIO

Paratransit is required to maintain a fare revenue to operating expense ratio of 5% in order to be eligible for
TDA funding. The fare revenue to operating expense ratio for Paratransit is calculated as follows for the
years ended June 30:

2024
2025 Restated

Fare revenues $ 2468588 $ 3,128,876
Local funds - interest income 2474
Total fare revenues and local funds $ 2468588 § 3,131,350
Total operating expenses $12,488,837  $13,102911
Less:

Mobility training (535,931) (435,243)

Depreciation, included in elderly and disabled transportation (1,220,246) (1,249,723)

Diversified services and outside maintenance (3,679,737) (3,629,975)

PI Housing Solutions (67,478)

Destinations Mobility, including depreciation (11,294) (43,942)
Net operating expenses $ 7,041,629 $ 7,676,550
Fare revenue ratio 35.06% 40.79%
Required ratio 5.00% 5.00%

15



PARATRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO STATUTORY BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2025 and 2024

NOTE I - POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS

Plan Description: Paratransit had a single-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
plan under which one retired employee and her spouse (participants) are currently eligible for
postemployment healthcare benefits. The plan was terminated during the year ended June 30, 2025 due to
the death of the participants. No other employees or former employees are eligible for the OPEB Plan. The
benefit provisions are established in the form of a binding contract with the employee, which was approved
by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has the authority to establish and amend the benefit
terms under its bylaws. No assets were accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB
Statement No. 75, although an annuity has been established that could be used to pay the benefit payments,
as described below. The OPEB Plan currently does not issue stand-alone financial statements.

Benefits Provided: A benefit amount was required to be paid in cash to the participant by Paratransit in the
amount of the Kaiser Traditional Plan premium for “employee plus one”, plus an additional $2,500 for non-
premium costs. The benefit amount was subject to a 5% maximum contractually required adjustment each
year for inflation.

Contributions: The contributions in the form of the required cash payment discussed above amounted to
$7,528 during the year ended June 30, 2024. No additional contributions are made to the plan.

Total OPEB Liability: Paratransit has computed the post-employment benefits using the alternative
measurement method. Paratransit’s total OPEB liability of $240,738 at June 30, 2024 was measured using
the Alternative Measurement Method as of January 1, 2021.

Changes in the total OPEB liability were as follows:

2025 2024

Total OPEB liability, July 1 $ 240,738 § 224,861
Changes for the year:

Interest on net OPEB obligation - 8,925

Changes in assumptions (13,205) 14,480

Benefit payments - (7,528)

Return of annuity (227,533) -
Decrease in OPEB liability (240,738) 15,877
Total OPEB liability, June 30 $ - $ 240,738

OPEB expense recognized during the year ended June 30, 2024 totaled $15,877.

16



PARATRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO STATUTORY BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2025 and 2024

NOTE I - POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs: The total OPEB liability was determined using the following
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise
specified:

2024
Valuation date January 1, 2023
Measurement date January 1, 2023
Discount rate 3.85%
Healthcare trend rate 5 percent per year
Remaining life expectancy 13 years

Because the OPEB Plan has no plan assets, the discount rate used was an index rate for 20-year, tax exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The Market Yield on U.S.
Treasury Securities at 20-Y ear Constant Maturity was used as of June 30, 2024 and 2023. The discount rate
of 3.85% at June 30, 20254 represents a change in assumptions from the 1.90% discount rate used at June
30, 2024. The healthcare trend rate used of 5% is the limit on healthcare premium increases specified in
the agreement with the participants. The mortality assumption was based on the Social Security
Administration’s actuarial life tables prepared by the Office of the Chief Actuary.

Sensitivity to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following table presents the total OPEB liability as well
as what the OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower or higher
than the current discount rate at June 30, 2024:

2024
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
0.90% 1.90% 2.90%
Total OPEB liability $ 224443 § 240,738 $ 257,902

Related Section 457(f) Plan and Insurance Annuity: Paratransit held a single premium deferred annuity
from an insurance company with a contract amount of $227,534 at June 30, 2024 that was held for OPEB
benefits. The contract amount was held in a nonelective deferred compensation plan (the Plan) organized
under IRC Code section 457(f) to assist in funding of the postretirement healthcare benefits discussed above
for the retired employee and her spouse. Paratransit paid $230,000 to Sentinel Security Life Insurance
Company in July 2018 and is allowed to withdraw up to 10% of the contract amount without penalty to
help fund OPEB benefits. See Note D for more information about the provisions of the insurance contract.
Under terms of the agreement, Paratransit retains the rights to the contract amount and any income
generated over the contract period. Once any contract amount is returned to Paratransit, it will not be
restricted for OPEB benefits, so the amount is not considered to be OPEB Plan assets. The assets are
available to creditors of Paratransit under the Plan document. The annuity was returned to Paratransit in
the year ended June 30, 2025 due to the death of the participants.

17



PARATRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO STATUTORY BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2025 and 2024

NOTE J - RISK MANAGEMENT

Paratransit is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; natural disasters; and unemployment. Paratransit obtains its
automobile liability insurance through a charitable risk pool, NonProfits’ United Vehicle Insurance Pool
(NonProfits), which provides insurance to over 200 nonprofits in California. Paratransit pays an annual
premium for its automobile insurance coverage and has a coverage limit of $2 million with a $10,000
deductible. NonProfits is nonassessable, such that Paratransit is not liable should the NonProfits liabilities
exceed its assets.

Paratransit is a member of the NonProfits United Workers” Compensation Group, Inc. (NPU-WCGQ), a self-
insurance pool providing California nonprofits with workers compensation insurance and risk management
services. NPU-WCG is governed by a Board of Directors elected by, and from, the membership.
Paratransit pays an annual deposit and monthly premiums to NPU-WCA for its workers’ compensation
insurance coverage. NonProfit’s coverage limit is $1,000,000 for each event. The NPU-WCG is expected
to be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims
in excess of specified amounts. Financial statements for NonProfits may be obtained at 610 Fulton Avenue,
Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 95825 or www.niac.org.

Paratransit is self-insured for unemployment benefits. Paratransit pays amounts into a trust, and the trust
handles the payment of claims. Paratransit is responsible for paying claims if the amounts in the trust are
not sufficient to cover the claims.

Paratransit continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including general, umbrella,
employee dishonesty, and professional liability. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE K — TAX DEFERRED ANNUITY PLAN

Paratransit maintains a Tax Deferred Annuity Plan administered by American United Life Insurance
Company (OneAmerica) under section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Service. Plan provisions and
contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the Board of Directors. Regular full
time non-bargaining unit employees become eligible to participate after two years of service. Employees
are permitted to make contributions to the Plan up to applicable Internal Revenue Code limits. Under the
Plan, Paratransit contributes 9% to 15% of wages of eligible employees depending on years of service.
Employees vest immediately in both employee and employer contributions, so there are no forfeitures.
Paratransit’s contributions were $474,109 and $321,217 for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024,
respectively.

NOTE L — CONCENTRATIONS

Paratransit currently receives a substantial amount of its support from a county-wide sales tax approved
under Measure A, statewide retail sales tax from the Local Transportation Fund created by the
Transportation Development Act, and an agreement with ALTA Regional Center to carry out ALTA’s
specialized transportation services for developmentally disabled clientele. A significant reduction in the
level of this support, if this were to occur, may have a significant effect on Paratransit’s activities.
Paratransit’s ability to operate and provide services is dependent on its continued ability to obtain
government grants and funds and to maintain operating costs at a level consistent with the amount of support
obtained.

18



PARATRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO STATUTORY BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2025 and 2024

NOTE M — CONTINGENCIES

Paratransit receives grants and funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the funding
source. Such audits could result in a request for reimbursement for expenditures disallowed under the terms
and conditions of the contracts. Management is of the opinion that no material liabilities will result from
such potential audits.

NOTE N - COMMITMENTS

In September 2022, ALTA California Regional Center (ALTA) identified overpayments made to
Paratransit for alternative services that were later determined to be unauthorized. Overpayments totaled
$708,901 for the months of July 2021 to July 2022. Included in accounts payable at June 30, 2025 and
2024 is $89,872 and $164,691, respectively, of the total remaining amounts due to ALTA.

Collective Bargaining Arrangements: Paratransit depends on its vehicle operators for vehicle operations.
Paratransit’s vehicle operators are covered by a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Amalgamated
Transit Union, Local 256 that expires on December 31, 2025. Paratransit’s vehicle operations would be
disrupted if the MOU is not extended by the expiration date.

NOTE O — CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE AND ERROR CORRECTION

Paratransit implemented GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, during the year ended June
30, 2025, which resulted in sick leave payable being accrued for expected time-off to be used. As a result
of this change of accounting principle, net position as of July 1, 2023 was reduced by $410,181, the
compensated absences liability increased and net position decreased at June 30, 2024 by $448,793 and
operating expense increased for the year ended June 30, 2024 by $38,612.

In addition, PTHS entered into a partnership agreement in June 2024 and received a $145,000 capital interest
for pre-development costs incurred. Paratransit determined during the year ended June 30, 2025 that these
pre-development costs were incorrectly expensed and was corrected, resulting in a $44,785 increase in net
position at July 1,2023, a $112,068 increase in Investment in Partnership as of June 30, 2024 and a $67,283
decrease in operating expenses for the year ending June 30, 2024,

19



(This page intentionally left blank.)



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



(This page intentionally left blank.)



PARATRANSIT, INC
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS (UNAUDITED)
Last 10 Years

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Total OPEB liability
Service cost $ 283,949
Interest $ 8,925 $ 4,192 $ 3395 § 7,854 § 9,470 8,474
Changes in assumptions 14,480 (2,544) (19,087) (7,993) 3,110
Benefit payments (7,528) (11,158) (11,158) (11,158) (17,565) (14,920)
Net change in total OPEB liability 15,877 9,510) (26,850) (11,297) (4,985) 277,503
Total OPEB liability - beginning 224,361 234,371 261,221 272,518 277,503
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 240,738 $ 224861 $ 234,371  $ 261,221  § 272,518 $ 277,503
Notes to schedule:
Valuation date January 1,2023  January 1, 2022 January 1,2019  January 1, 2018
Measurement period - fiscal year ended January 1,2023  January 1, 2022 January 1,2019  January 1, 2018
Changes in assumptions:

Discount rate 3.85% 1.90% 1.47% 3.10% 3.60% 3.15%

Note: Participants of the plan consist of only one retired employee and her spouse, so the Plan has no covered payroll.

Omitted years: The Plan was established during the year ended June 30, 2019. Information will be added prospectively as it becomes available until 10 years are
reported.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE OPEB PLAN (UNAUDITED)
Last 10 Years

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Contractually determined

contribution - employer fiscal year $ 7,528 $ 11,158 § 11,158 § 11,158 § 17,565  $ 14,920
Contributions in relation to the contractually

determined contribution (7,528) (11,158) (11,158) (11,158) (17,565) (14,920)

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -8 -3 -8 -8 -8 -

Covered-employee payroll - employer
fiscal year $ - 8 - 8 - 8 -3 -3 -

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Notes to Schedule:
Note: Participants of the plan consist of only one retired employee and her spouse, so the Plan is not based on payroll.

Valuation date January 1,2023  January 1,2022  January 1,2021  January 1,2020  January 1,2019  January 1, 2018
Measurement period - fiscal year ended January 1,2023  January 1,2022  January 1,2021  January 1,2020  January 1,2019  January 1, 2018

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Alternative measurement method

Amortization period in years 13 14 14 15 16 17
Healthcare cost trend rates 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Discount rate 3.85% 1.90% 1.47% 3.10% 3.60% 3.15%

Omitted years: The Plan was established during the year ended June 30, 2019. Information will be added prospectively as it becomes available until 10 years are
reported.

20



(This page intentionally left blank.)



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



(This page intentionally left blank.)



550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210

IC I_I A R D S O N Sacramento, California 95825
& COMPANY u» Teorn: 10 ST

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To the Board of Directors
Paratransit, Inc.
Sacramento, California

We have audited the financial statements of Paratransit, Inc. as of and for the years ended June 30, 2025
and 2024 and our report thereon dated January 9, 2026, which expressed a modified opinion on those
financial statements, appears on pages 1 to 3. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The Schedules of Expenses by Function is presented for
the purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Areharoor>o b Lompory, LiP

January 9, 2026

21



PARATRANSIT, INC.

SCHEDULES OF EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Elderly and Disabled Transportation
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services
Insurance
Fuel
Materials and supplies
Utilities
Miscellaneous
Interest expense
Leases and rentals
Depreciation and amortization

Total Elderly and Disabled Transportation

Diversified Services and Outside Maintenance

Salaries and wages
Fuel

Employee benefits
Services

Materials and supplies
Utilities
Miscellaneous
Insurance

Interest expense
Leases and rentals

Total Diversified Services and Outside Maintenance

Mobility Training Services
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services
Utilities
Materials and supplies
Miscellaneous
Interest expense
Leases and rentals
Insurance

Total Mobility Training Services

Destinations Mobility
Insurance
Miscellaneous
Services
Materials and supplies
Total Destinations Mobility

2024

2025 Restated
$ 2,874,648 $ 3,350,536
1,497,368 1,548,044
956,296 930,344
687,021 595,859
432,811 510,680
193,160 287,390
197,475 199,827
115,365 179,051
69,402 67,434
18,083 34,849
1,220,246 1,249,723
8,261,875 8,953,737
1,055,228 1,084,032
1,338,030 1,271,421
602,668 536,805
324,692 378,389
252,592 238,356
39,505 45,238
28,949 40,645
22,847 25414
11,238 11,495
3,988 7,631
3,679,737 3,639,426
229,167 201,223
155,385 115,570
102,206 63,622
16,420 16,202
12,458 15,082
8,553 15,921
4,411 4,694
1,533 2,962
5,798 1,859
535,931 437,135
9,480 18,827
679 1,585
598 6,707
537 16,823
11,294 43,942
Total Operating Expenses $ 12,488,837 $§ 13,074,240

22



COMPLIANCE REPORT



(This page intentionally left blank.)



550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210

IC I_I A RD S O N Sacramento, California 95825
& COMPANY . Tokphone 0 s 7

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT AND
OTHER STATE PROGRAM GUIDELINES

Board of Directors
Paratransit, Inc.
Sacramento, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Paratransit, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Paratransit’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 9, 2026. Our
report disclosed that, as described in Note A to the financial statements, Paratransit, Inc. prepares its
financial statements in conformity with the accounting principles prescribed by the Transportation
Development Act, which requires Paratransit, Inc. to prepare its financial statements in the same manner as
an enterprise fund in a governmental agency. This method follows accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America for governmental agencies, but is a comprehensive basis of accounting
other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for nonprofit
organizations.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Paratransit’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Paratransit’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Paratransit’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

23



To the Board of Directors
Paratransit, Inc.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Paratransit’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. Our audit was further made to determine that Transportation Development Act (TDA)
Funds allocated and received by Paratransit were expended in conformance with the applicable statutes,
rules and regulations of the TDA and Section 6667 of the California Code of Regulations. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards or
TDA guidelines.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Paratransit’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Paratransit’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Archaroor>o b Lompary, 4P

January 9, 2026

24



Paratransit, Inc.
Board of Directors Staff Report
Agenda Item 6A

AGENDA TITLE: Approve the Minutes of the December 15, 2025 Meeting of
the Board of Directors

MEETING DATE: February 12, 2026

PREPARED BY: Chris M. Brown, SHRM-SCP, SPHR, Assistant Secretary of
the Board of Directors

Recommended Action:

Approve the Minutes of the December 15, 2025, Special Meeting of the Board of
Directors.

Minutes

December 15, 2025

6:00 p.m.

Ron Brown Conference Center

2501 Florin Road Sacramento, CA 95822

Board Members Present Board Members Absent

Jim Alves

Julia Burrows

April Dawson Rawlings
Pat Hume

Patrick Mulvaney

Kim Tucker

Public Present

Brandon Black
Katie McCleary
Doug Bergman
Eric Ciampa



Staff Present

Tiffani Scott, President and Chief Executive Officer

Gary Vickers, Chief Operating Officer

Chris Brown, SHRM-SCP, SPHR, Chief Administrative Officer
Jesse Isaacson, Director of Information Technology

Jamila Lee, SHRM-CP, PHR, Director of Human Resources
Alicia Brown, Director of Strategic Initiatives and Mobility

Amy Parkin, Director of Service Performance

Isaac Gonzalez, Public Relations Consultant

Osman Mufti, Legal Counsel

Call to Order/Roll Call

Director Hume called the meeting to order at 6:10 p.m.
Directors: Alves, Burrows, Dawson Rawlings, Hume, Mulvaney, Tucker

Pledge of Allegiance

Director Tucker led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Closed Session

The Board adjourned to closed session at 6:12 p.m.

Reconvene to Open Session

The Board reconvened to open session at 7:17 p.m. Director Hume reported no
action was taken.

Staff Reports

A. CEO Report
a. Update on Activities and Contracts

Chief Executive Officer Tiffani Scott shared the transit providers in the region
have been working with SACOG on the future of transit and wanting to take a
coordinated approach. CEO Scott was part of the Greater Sacramento
Economic Trip to Germany where she made connections with Los Rios and
Sierra College, and they discussed how Paratransit’s mobility programs could
be integrated into their workforce initiatives. These programs could also
benefit agencies like Bosch, Siemens and other companies Sacramento is
trying to attract. CEO Scott provided information on a bid we are responding
to for the Western Placer County Rides Program that would integrate with our
current travel training and give us a bigger footprint in the SACOG region. As



we close out the year, Winter Wish List is almost completed. This year we
received $20,000 in donations and saw an increase in volunteer participation
to prepare 2500 boxes. This is a total 17,500 boxes since the inception of
Winter Wish List. The financial audit is going on and will be presented at the
February meeting.

. CFO Report

Monthly Financial Report

CEO Scaott filled in the for Chief Financial Officer Lisa Cappellari and reviewed
metrics for July 2024 through November 2025. We have worked to find the
balance of Alta trips, shuttles and food box deliveries. CEO Scott explained the
November trips were lower due to not providing service on Veterans’ Day as
well as Thanksgiving and the day after. Additionally CEO Scott shared we have
the Areas of Persistent Poverty grant for the Home to Healthcare shuttles and
are working with Dr. Janine Berra to conduct outreach. Mobility Management
remains busy and Maintenance continues to grow as we are utilizing more
features in our asset management software. Measure A funds are close to
budget and TDA revenues are slightly ahead. We are still processing grants
through SacRT and waiting for the revenue to come in.

Consent Calendar

The Consent Calendar was approved upon motion by Director Tucker, seconded
by Director Burrows. The motion passed.

A.

B.

C.

Approve the Minutes of the August 18, 2025 Special Meeting of the Board of
Directors

The Minutes were approved as presented.

Adopt Resolution 29-25 Adopting Update #5 to the Paratransit, Inc. Public
Transit Agency Safety Plan

The resolution was approved as presented.

Vote for Items A and B

AYES: Alves, Burrows, Dawson Rawlings, Hume, Mulvaney, Tucker
NOES: None

ABSTENTIONS: None

ABSENT: None

Adopt Resolution 30-25 Approving the Paratransit, Inc. Board Meeting
Calendar for February 2026




This item was pulled from the Consent Calendar for discussion of an earlier
meeting time. Director Dawson Rawlings moved to amend the resolution to
reflect a 2:00 p.m. meeting time for the February 12, 2026 Board Meeting.
Director Mulvaney seconded the motion. The motion passed.

Vote for Item C

AYES: Alves, Burrows, Dawson Rawlings, Hume, Mulvaney, Tucker
NOES: None

ABSTENTIONS: None

ABSENT: None

Action ltems
A. Discussion and Appointment of Three Board Members for a three-year term,

beqginning January 1, 2026

Director Alves shared CEO Scott brought a slate of four candidates for he and
Director Tucker to interview. After one-on-one interviews, they are presenting
Brandon Black, Robert Heidt and Katie McCleary as candidates for the Board
of Directors. Mr. Black and Ms. McCleary were in attendance and addressed
the Board. CEO Scott provided background on Mr. Heidt.

Director Alves moved to approve the appointments of Brandon Black, Robert
Heidt and Katie McCleary to the Board of Directors for a three year term each
beginning January 1, 2026. The motion was seconded by Director Tucker, and
it was unanimously approved by the Board.

AYES: Alves, Burrows, Dawson Rawlings, Hume, Mulvaney, Tucker
NOES: None

ABSTENTIONS: None

ABSENT: None

B. Adopt Resolution 31-25 Commending Julia Burrows for her service to the
Paratransit, Inc. Board of Directors
Director Burrows expressed gratitude for the work Tiffani and staff do every
day, to Director Hume for is organizational skills and public service, and to Kim
and Jim for sharing their experience and answering questions. Director
Burrows said she is available to volunteer on a project or answer questions.
Director Tucker expressed her gratitude and CEO Scott read the resolution.

Director Hume moved to adopt Resolution 31-25 Commending Julia Burrows
for her service to the Paratransit, Inc. Board of Directors as presented. The
motion was seconded by Director Mulvaney, and it was approved by the Board.



C.

E.

AYES: Alves, Dawson Rawlings, Hume, Mulvaney, Tucker
NOES: None

ABSTENTIONS: Burrows

ABSENT: None

Adopt Resolution 32-25 Commending Leigh White for her service to the
Paratransit, Inc. Board of Directors

CEO Scott shared Director White had to resign in November and wished she
could have done more. She was very dedicated and we appreciate that.

Director Dawson Rawlings moved to adopt Resolution 32-25 Commending
Leigh White for her service to the Paratransit, Inc. Board of Directors as
presented. The motion was seconded by Director Alves, and it was approved
by the Board.

AYES: Alves, Burrows, Dawson Rawlings, Hume, Mulvaney, Tucker
NOES: None

ABSTENTIONS: None

ABSENT: None

Adopt Resolution 33-25 Commending Pat Hume for his service to the
Paratransit, Inc. Board of Directors

CEO Scott thanked Director Hume for his leadership and read the resolution.
Director Hume said the Board is different than when he was appointed. Now
there are broader business opportunities. He shared three pieces of advice:
1) keep your eyes wide open; 2) explore the housing on Woodbine; and 3)
there is nothing stopping Paratransit from taking the success and becoming a
true community development corporation. Director Alves thanked Director
Hume for his leadership.

Director Mulvaney moved to adopt Resolution 33-25 Commending Pat Hume
for his service to the Paratransit, Inc. Board of Directors as presented. The
motion was seconded by Director Burrows, and it was approved by the Board.

AYES: Alves, Burrows, Dawson Rawlings, Mulvaney, Tucker
NOES: None

ABSTENTIONS: Hume

ABSENT: None

Presentation to out-going Board Chair Pat Hume




CEO Scott shared Director Hume is one of the longest tenured Board members
and is thankful for his leadership and guidance for the agency. He was
appointed in 2012, has served as the Chair four times and led the agency
through the transition in 2020. Director Tucker presented the commissioned
glass sculpture in recognition of Director Hume’s service. It was done by a
local artist in Paratransit colors.

. Discussion and Possible Action for Adjustment to Compensation for the

President and CEO

This item was pulled from the agenda.

. Adopt Resolution 34-25 - Affirmation of Action of President and CEO
Regarding UCP MOU for CTSA services with UCP and Affirmation of
Continued Delegated Authority of President and CEO for all Actions Related to
Use, Lease or Occupancy of Paratransit Facilities.

Legal Counsel Osman Mufti presented Resolution 34-25 that confirms the
CEO’s existing authority to handle all matters related to use, lease or
occupancy of Paratransit facilities. This affirms what her employment
agreement and two resolutions passed in 2023 state, and is being restated as
because there was a question of her authority to terminate the agreement with
UCP. This resolution removes doubt even though the CEQO’s already has this
authority.

There was public comment from Doug Bergman, CEO/President from UCP.
He stated he thinks there has been agreement on a new MOU which allows
UCP to maintain their presence at Paratransit through September 30, 2026
with two three-month extensions. This ensures 600 clients will continue to
receive service. Mr. Bergman thanked CEO Scott and Paratransit for the
partnership of over 30 years and appreciates the continued partnership.

Director Alves moved to adopt Resolution 33-25 Commending Pat Hume for
his service to the Paratransit, Inc. Board of Directors as presented. The motion
was seconded by Director Burrows, and it was approved by the Board.

AYES: Alves, Burrows, Dawson Rawlings, Hume, Mulvaney, Tucker
NOES: None

ABSTENTIONS: None

ABSENT: None




Public Comment

None

Board Comments/Reports/Future Agenda Items

Director Burrows wished everyone a Happy Holidays, and Director Hume wished
“happy trails” to the Directors. CEO Scott shared the February Board Meeting
would focus on the Board Meeting Calendar, election of officers and Board goals.

Adjournment

Director Hume announced the meeting adjourned at 8:08 p.m.

2/12/2026
Chris M. Brown, SHRM-SCP, SPHR Date
Chief Administrative Officer/Secretary




Paratransit, Inc.
Board of Directors Staff Report
Agenda Iltem 6C

AGENDA TITLE: Approve Resolution 01-26 Authorizing the President and
CEO to prepare, submit and execute Agreements for
various upcoming grant programs from the Sacramento
Area Council of Governments, the State of California, the
Federal Transit Administration, and assorted local
programs

MEETING DATE: February 12, 2026

PREPARED BY: Tiffani M. Scott, President and CEO
Lisa M. Cappellari, Chief Financial Officer

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Adopt Resolution 01-26 Authorizing the President and CEO to submit
Proposals and Funding Applications, as opportunities arise, to pursue funding
from the Federal Transit Administration, SACOG, the State of California or
other funding sources and to execute any contracts and/or agreements, if
awarded.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION:

Paratransit, Inc. routinely applies for numerous calls for project funding
applications for funding to operate our services. Many of the programs are on
two-year cycles which are soon going to open. In addition, with the passage
of the Bi-Partisan Infrastructure Bill and the Build Back Better bills, staff is
requesting authority to pursue funding advantageous to continuation and
expansion of our programs.



FISCAL IMPACT:

The current year fiscal budget is built upon already awarded funds. Any
funding awarded would be included in future budgets.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution 01-26



S

RESOLUTION NO. 01-26

AUTHORIZING THE PRESIDENT AND CEO TO PREPARE, SUBMIT AND EXECUTE
AGREEMENTS FOR VARIOUS UPCOMING GRANT PROGRAMS FROM THE
SACRAMENTO AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS, THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION, AND
ASSORTED LOCAL PROGRAMS

WHEREAS, Congress recently passed the Bi-Partisan Infrastructure Bill and SACOG is
entering into their upcoming funding cycles; and

WHEREAS, as a transit and social service provider, Paratransit, Inc. is considered an
essential business delivering critical infrastructure and needs to continue providing
essential public services; and

WHEREAS, many of the programs and services Paratransit provides are eligible for these
funding programs.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of Paratransit, Inc.
hereby authorizes the President and CEO to prepare, submit and execute Agreements
for various upcoming grant programs from the Sacramento Area Council of Governments,
State of California, Federal Transit Administration, and assorted local programs.

Kim Tucker, Vice Chair of the Board
Paratransit, Inc. Board of Directors
Dated: February 12, 2026



Paratransit, Inc.
Board of Directors Staff Report
Agenda Iltem 6D

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt Resolution 02-26 Approving the 2026-2029
Title VI Plan for Paratransit, Inc. and Authorizing the
President and CEO to make administrative
adjustments to the plan, as needed

MEETING DATE: February 12, 2026

PREPARED BY: Tiffani M. Scott, President and CEO

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Adopt Resolution 02-26 Approving the 2026-2029 Title VI Plan and
authorizing the President and CEO to make administrative adjustments to
the program, as needed.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION:

In Federal Circular 4702.1B, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
requires all recipients and sub-recipients to develop a Title VI Plan to ensure
that equal access is provided to passengers and that the proper language
assistance materials are made available. Paratransit, Inc. has had a Title VI
policy for several years and this adoption covers the newest planning period
extending the plan until 2029.

The Title VI Plan presented is an update of Paratransit’s existing Board-
adopted Program, and is consistent with updated American Community
Survey Data. This update makes no substantial changes to the previous plan
as existing Safe Harbor Languages remain unchanged with the recent data
releases for the areas we serve. The plan outlines the process utilized to
monitor equal access to passengers and describes the different ways that



Paratransit, Inc. reaches out to the community and, in particular, passengers
with Limited English Proficiency (LEP).

Each agency receiving federal funds is required to update and have the
Board re-adopt their program every three years, and staff is recommending
that the Board of Directors authorize the President and CEO to make any
administrative adjustments in the interim. These would include updating the
exhibits to show revised outreach materials or updated procedures.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The Title VI plan is required to be adopted by the Board to remain eligible to
utilize federal funds. Failure to adopt the plan, could jeopardize the use of
federal capital and operating funds.

Attachments:
1. Resolution 02-26
2. Title VI Plan for years 2026-2029



e

RESOLUTION NO. 02-26

APPROVING THE 2026-2029 TITLE VI PLAN FOR PARATRANSIT, INC.
AND AUTHORIZING THE PRESIDENT AND CEO TO MAKE
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS TO THE PLAN, AS NEEDED

WHEREAS, every three (3) years the Paratransit, Inc. Board of Directors is
required to adopt an updated Title VI plan in accordance with federal
requirements; and

WHEREAS, Paratransit, Inc. is a recipient of federal funds for operating and
capital purposes; and

WHEREAS, upon adoption, this plan will be transmitted to our funding
partners for compliance.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of
Paratransit, Inc. adopts Resolution 02-26 approving the Paratransit, Inc. Title
VI Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of
Directors of Paratransit, Inc. authorizes the President and CEO to make
administrative adjustments as needed.

Kim Tucker, Vice Chair of the Board
Paratransit, Inc. Board of Directors
Dated: February 12, 2026



Paratransit, Inc.

Title VI Program
Update
2026-2029

<

PARATRANSIT, INC,



1.0 Introduction

1.1 Paratransit, Inc. Profile

Founded in 1978, Paratransit, Inc. is a private nonprofit corporation
dedicated to providing transportation services to individuals with disabilities,
the elderly, and related agencies throughout the Sacramento County area.

In 1979, using Paratransit, Inc. as a model, Assemblyman Walter Ingalls
authored Assembly Bill (AB) 120, the Social Service Transportation
Improvement Act. This landmark legislation included a provision calling for
the designation of a Consolidated Transportation Services Agency (CTSA)
in each California County. Paratransit, Inc. was the first such agency
designated in California.

Since 1981, Paratransit, Inc. has served as the CTSA for the Sacramento
urbanized area and is recognized as a national leader in coordinated
transportation programs. As the designated CTSA, Paratransit, Inc. works
with social service agencies such as the United Cerebral Palsy Association
of Northern California, ACC Senior Services (formerly Asian Community
Center), and the Elk Grove Adult Community Training program, to increase
transportation options for seniors, individuals with disabilities and people with
low incomes. For over 40 years, Paratransit has worked with a variety of
local nonprofit agencies to provide transportation services, accessible
vehicles, low-cost vehicle maintenance, and travel training programs.

1.2 Requirements and Guidance

As a condition of Paratransit, Inc.’s funding from the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA), Paratransit, Inc. is required annually to submit
Certifications and Assurances. In addition, on a triennial basis, Paratransit,
Inc. is required to submit evidence documenting compliance with FTA
Circular 4702.1B on Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which states in
Section 601:

No person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color or
national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the



benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or
activity receiving federal financial assistance.

There are two Presidential Executive Orders that place further emphasis
upon Title VI protections of race and national origin.

Executive Order #12898 directs federal agencies to develop
strategies to address disproportionately high and adverse human
health or environmental effects of their programs on minority and
low-income populations.

Executive Order #13166 directs federal agencies to evaluate
services provided and implement a system that ensures that
persons with Limited English Proficiency are able to meaningfully
access the services provided consistent with and without unduly
burdening the fundamental mission of each federal agency.
Additionally, each federal agency shall ensure that recipients of
federal financial assistance provide meaningful access to their
Limited English Proficiency applicants and beneficiaries.

Circular 4703.1 went into effect on August 15, 2012 to provide
recipients of FTA financial assistance with guidance to
incorporate environmental justice principles into plans, projects
and  activites that receive funding from  FTA.

Circular 4702.1B went into effect on October 1, 2012 to assist
grantees in complying with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.
The purpose of this Circular is to provide recipients of FTA
financial assistance with instructions and guidance necessary to
carry out the US Department of Transportation’s Title VI
regulations (49 CFR part 21).



2.0 General Requirements

2.1 Notice to the Public

Requirement: All recipients must provide a copy of the recipient’s Title VI
notice to the public that indicates that the recipient complies with Title VI, and
informing members of the public of the protections against discrimination
afforded to them by Title VI, as well as a list of locations where the notice is
posted.

Policy: Paratransit, Inc. posts its Title VI notice in English and our Safe
Harbor Languages of: Spanish, Vietnamese, Chinese, Hmong, and Russian
in the public portions of our Administration building located at 2501 Florin
Road and online at www.paratransit.org.

2.1 Complaint Procedures and Form

Requirement: All recipients must provide a copy of instructions to the public
regarding how to file a Title VI discrimination complaint, including a copy of
the complaint form.

Policy: The procedure for filing a Title VI complaint can be found online at
www.paratransit.org and may also be obtained from Paratransit, Inc.’s
Administration Department. Paratransit, Inc. staff is available to assist
complainants with filing a Title VI complaint.

Paratransit, Inc. has developed procedures for filing, tracking and
investigating Title VI complaints. The procedures, including a complaint form
provided by Paratransit, Inc. are included in Appendix 2.

2.2 Investigations, Complaints and Lawsuits

Requirement: All recipients must provide a list of any public transportation
related Title VI investigations, complaints and lawsuits filed with the recipient
since the time of the last submission.


http://www.paratransit.org/

Policy: Paratransit, Inc. has developed procedures for tracking and
monitoring Title VI complaints and lawsuits and has procedures for
investigation of complaints.

Paratransit, Inc. has not received any complaints of discrimination pursuant
to Title VI. A statement noting that no complaints have been received is
included as Appendix 3.

2.3 Inclusive Public Involvement

Requirement: Pursuant to 49 CFR 21.5(b)(7), and to engage in community
outreach consistent with the DOT Order on Environmental Justice, recipients
and sub-recipients shall seek out and consider the viewpoints of minority and
low income populations in the course of conducting public outreach and
involvement activities. An agency’s public participation plan shall offer early
and continuous opportunities for the public to be involved in the identification
of social, economic and environmental impacts of proposed transportation
decisions.

Policy: Paratransit, Inc. staff actively reaches out to organized community
groups (i.e., ACC Senior Services, Hmong Heritage Center, senior facilities,
public transportation providers, etc.) to conduct travel training classes.
During these classes, informational packets are disseminated and
interpreters are available to assist with patrons who have limited English
proficiency.

Also, Paratransit, Inc. staff participates in several advisory committees,
including the Transit Coordinating Committee of the Sacramento Area
Council of Governments, and the Mobility Advisory Council of the
Sacramento Regional Transit District. Through these advisory councils,
Paratransit, Inc. staff participates in public outreach efforts on community
and regional transportation and transit service planning efforts.

2.4 Language Assistance Plan

Requirement: All recipients are required to provide a Language Assistance
Plan (LAP), which specifies policies and procedures for providing language



assistance to LEP populations, in accordance with U.S. Department of
Transportation LEP Guidance.

2.4.1 Four Factor Analysis

The U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) issued its Policy
Guidance Concerning Recipient’s Responsibilities to Limited English
Proficiency (LEP) Persons. This policy states that DOT recipients are
required to take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to
programs by LEP persons. This coverage extends to the recipient’'s
entire program. There are four factors for agencies to consider when
assessing language needs and determining what steps they should take
to ensure access for LEP persons, regardless of whether or not the
agency chooses not to prepare a written LEP plan:

1) The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served
or likely to be encountered by a program, activity or service of
the recipient;

2) The frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with }
the program;

3) The nature and importance of the program, activity or service
provided by the recipient to people’s lives; and

4) The resources available to the recipient and costs. A brief
description of the self-assessment undertaken in each of the
areas follows.

2.4.1a The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible
to be served or likely to be encountered by a program,
activity or service of the recipient.

People of Spanish or Asian decent are the primary LEP persons
likely to be encountered by Paratransit, Inc. programs and transit
services. For the Sacramento Urbanized Area, the American
Community Survey of the U.S. Census Bureau shows that
among the area’s population, 73.5 spoke English as a first
language or spoke it “very well” as a second language. For
groups who spoke English “less than very well”’, 6.1% are



Hispanic, 1 percent is of Chinese descent, and 2.7 percent are
of other Asian descent, including Russian, Hmong, Viethamese
and Laotian.

Appendix 4 contains a table that lists the languages spoken at
home by the ability to speak English for the population within the
Sacramento Urbanized Area five years and older.

2.4.1b The frequency with which LEP individuals come
in contact with the program.

Paratransit, Inc. has assessed the frequency at which staff has
or could possibly have contact with LEP persons. This includes
examining census data, phone inquiries, requests for translated
documents and staff feedback. As discussed above, census
data indicate that there is a fairly large percentage of the general
population, who are Spanish speaking persons or those of Asian
descent. As a demand-response transportation provider, it is
necessary to recognize these segments of the general
population. Phone inquiries and staff feedback also indicate that
Spanish-speaking and Asian language LEP persons have
regular contact with the service or program.

2.4.1c The nature and importance of the program, activity
or service provided by the recipient to people’s lives.

Public transportation and regional transportation planning is vital
to many people’s lives. According to the Department of
Transportation’s Policy Guidance Concerning Recipient’s
Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons,
“Providing public transportation access to LEP persons is crucial.
An LEP person’s ability to utilize effective public transportation
may affect his or her ability to obtain health care, or education,
or access to employment.”

Although detailed data is not available from the American
Community Survey, aggregate data indicates that, of those who



2.5

take public transportation to work in the Sacramento Urbanized
Area, 15.6 percent are of Hispanic or Latino origin, and 11.5
percent are of Asian descent. In addition, of those within the
urbanized area, who take public transportation 10.8 percent
speak English “less than very well.” Although these figures are
generalized to “public transportation” and are not segregated into
fixed-route vs. demand-responsive services, it is reasonable to
assume that the data would indicate that Paratransit’s services
are important to these populations as a primary means to get to
work and other destinations.

2.4.1d The resources available to the recipient and costs

Paratransit, Inc. assessed its available resources that are
currently being used, and those that could be used, to provide
language assistance. Notwithstanding the significant cuts in
funding for public transportation service in the Sacramento
urbanized area, and the resulting cuts in ADA-related
transportation services, Paratransit, Inc. provides a reasonable
degree of services for limited English speaking persons.

Interactions with the Limited English Proficiency Population

Paratransit, Inc. employs the following to ensure meaningful input is
received:

Paratransit's automated telephone answering system provides
information in both English and Spanish, and calls are routed as
appropriate to English or Spanish speaking call representatives.

Paratransit ensures that staff or contract interpreters are available to
work with customers who speak Spanish, Vietnamese, Russian,
Hmong and Chinese.



2.6

Paratransit, Inc. works with organizations such as the ACC Senior
Services and the Hmong Heritage Center to recruit translators as
needed for public presentations and mobility training sessions.

When Paratransit, Inc. staff makes community presentations to groups
whom they know in advance are limited English speakers, Paratransit
staff will hire an interpreter to translate information from the
presentation to meeting attendees.

When customers communicate with Paratransit, Inc. and state a
language preference, requested materials are provided in the
requested language.

Notices that are posted on the Paratransit, Inc. vehicles are provided
in English and Spanish, as drivers most frequently interact with
Spanish-speaking individuals. Paratransit, Inc. provides these notices
to other limited-English speaking customers upon request.

LEP Training and Implementation by Paratransit, Inc. staff

Paratransit, Inc. employs the following to ensure meaningful input is
received:

e When new hires start employment, Paratransit, Inc. management

distributes an Administrative Handbook that contains all Paratransit,
Inc. policies and procedures. The Administrative Handbook will be
updated to include Paratransit, Inc.’s policy on outreach to and
communication with limited-English speaking persons.

As new policies/procedures are developed, or existing
policies/procedures are amended, these new documents are
distributed to affected employees through various methods, including
but not limited to paper distribution, electronic documents, postings in
employee break rooms, and scheduled group or individual training



sessions.

e Vehicle operators, who are the most direct point of contact for LEP
persons, have several methods to respond to an LEP individual. In
many instances, LEP individuals are accompanied by a companion
who speaks English and can translate for the customer. In addition,
many vehicle operators are bilingual. If vehicle operators are not
bilingual, they are instructed to ask for assistance from a bilingual
passenger. In the few cases where there is no one on the bus who
can offer language assistance when needed, the vehicle operator
contacts dispatch, and a supervisor is sent to the bus to assist.

2.7 Safe Harbor Provisions

The Safe Harbor requirements state, “if a recipient provides written
translation of vital documents for each eligible LEP language group that
constitutes five percent (5%) or 1,000 persons, whichever is less, of the total
population of persons eligible to be served or likely to be affected or
encountered, then such action will be considered strong evidence of
compliance with the recipient’s written translation obligations. Translation of
non-vital documents, if needed, can be provided orally.”

Based on the Four Factor analysis, as described above, Paratransit, Inc. has
identified the following documents to be made available:

1. Paratransit, Inc. Policy Statement of Non-Discrimination and Title VI
Civil Rights Protections

2. Title VI Facility and Vehicle Notifications

3. Paratransit, Inc. Implementation Procedure for Policy on
Nondiscrimination and Title VI Civil Rights Protection

4. Paratransit, Inc. Title VI Complaint Procedure

2.8 Monitoring, Evaluation and Updates to the plan

The Paratransit, Inc. Title VI program and Language Assistance Plan are
designed to be living documents that are updated accordingly. Paratransit,
Inc. monitors our services and service area statistics:



Through contact with our passengers both on-board

Through updated American Community Survey data

Through formal comments obtained by the public and local officials
Through active engagement in the regulatory process and monitoring
of updates to regulations and best practices

5. Through outreach in our travel training program with partner agencies
on their changing customer demographics.

N~

Based on the information received, Paratransit, Inc. reviews all comments
and updates the plan and outreach documents accordingly. All data is
reviewed as needed and at a minimum, a new plan is updated and adopted
by the Board every three years.

2.9 Committee and Board Composition

Committee and Board Composition Requirement: Recipients that have
transit-related, non-elected planning boards, advisory councils or
committees or similar bodies, the membership of which is selected by the
recipient, must provide a table depicting the racial breakdown of the
membership of those committees and a description of efforts made to
encourage the participation of minorities on such committees or councils.

Policy: Paratransit, Inc. does not have any non-elected planning boards,
advisory councils or committees, or similar bodies.

2.10 Construction Projects

Requirement: If the recipient has constructed a facility, such as a vehicle
storage facility, maintenance facility, operation center, etc., the recipient shall
include a copy of the Title VI equity analysis conducted during the planning
stage with regard to the location of the facility.

Title 49 CFR Section 21.9 (b)(3) states, “In determining the site or location
of facilities, a recipient or applicant may not make selections with the purpose
or effect of excluding persons from, denying them the benefits of, or
subjecting them to discrimination under any program to which this regulation
applies, on the ground of race, color or national origin.”



Title 49 CFR part 21, Appendix C, Section (3) (iv) provides, “The location of
projects requiring land acquisition and the displacement of persons from their
residences and businesses may not be determined on the basis of race,
color or national origin.”

For the purposes of this requirement, “facilities” does not include bus
shelters, as these are transit amenities and are covered in Chapter IV of
Circular 4702.1B, nor does it include transit stations, power substations, etc.,
as those are evaluated during project development and the CEQA and NEPA
processes. Facilities included in this provision include, but are not limited to,
storage facilities, maintenance facilities, operations centers, etc.

Policy: Paratransit, Inc. has a process in place to identify and monitor these
projects in the planning and project development phases to ensure that the
proper analysis is conducted. Paratransit, Inc. did not have any construction
projects, as defined by this regulation, during the time since the last program
submittal.

2.11 Subrecipient Monitoring

Recipients shall include a narrative or description of efforts used to ensure
subrecipients are complying with Title VI, as well as a schedule of
subrecipient Title VI program submissions.

Policy: Paratransit, Inc. does not have any pass-through agreements with
subrecipients and no such agreements are expected during the term of this
Title VI plan.

2.12 Board Approval

Requirement: A copy of board meeting minutes, resolution, or other
appropriate documentation showing the Board of Directors reviewed and
approved the Title VI program must be included.

Policy: This Title VI update will be posted to the Paratransit, Inc. website
once approved by Paratransit, Inc. and is scheduled to go to the Board of
Directors at its February 2026 meeting.



2.13 Required Submission of the Title VI Program

To ensure compliance with 49 CFR Section 21.9 (b), FTA requires that all
recipients document their compliance by submitting a Title VI program to
FTA’s regional civil rights officer once every three years.

3 Description of Service

Paratransit, Inc. funds and provides demand-responsive services to
individuals for the General Public . Paratransit, Inc. uses its revenues to
provide service to the public. The following is a description of the current
services offered:

Mobility Training

Paratransit, Inc. offers training on how to ride the local fixed route and light
rail service at no cost to the individual. Training includes help planning how
to get to and from favorite destinations and one-on-one training riding with
passengers on the bus until they can navigate independently on their own.
Because there may be non-ADA denials, Paratransit, Inc. encourages
anyone who wants to learn how to ride to take this free training. Companions
are also eligible to receive training along with Paratransit passengers.

4 General Reporting Requirements

Chapter IV of FTA Circular 4702.1B speaks to the general reporting
requirements required of recipients of FTA funding and its subrecipients to
ensure that their activities comply with the DOT Title VI regulations and/or
the DOT Order on Environmental Justice and the DOT Guidance on Limited
English Proficiency (LEP). Reporting requirements covering nine general
areas are identified in this chapter. Summaries of these requirements and
Paratransit Inc.’s efforts in meeting them are outlined below.

4.1 Annual Title VI Assurance



Applicants shall submit their annual Title VI assurance as part of their annual
Certification and Assurances submission to FTA. Recipients shall collect
Title VI assurances from subrecipients prior to passing through FTA funds
(these Title VI assurances can be submitted as part of a standard list of
assurances provided by subrecipients to their direct recipient).

Paratransit, Inc. annually submits its Certifications and Assurances to both
the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), Division of Mass
Transportation, as a subrecipient of Section 5310 funds and to the
Sacramento Regional Transit District as a subrecipient of Section 5307,
5309 and 5339 funds. The Executive Director and Chief Legal Counsel sign
the annual Certifications and Assurances document and submit it with
Paratransit, Inc.’s Section 5310 applications to Caltrans. Paratransit, Inc.’s
latest signed copy of the Certifications and Assurances is included in this
document as Appendix 1.

4.2 Notifying Beneficiaries of Protection

In order to comply with 49 CFR Section 21.9 (d), recipients and subrecipients
shall provide information to beneficiaries regarding their Title VI obligations
and appraising beneficiaries of the protections against discrimination
afforded to them by Title VI.

Paratransit, Inc. has established a Policy Statement, per Title VI, for those
who are benefiting from services, and/or contracts, funded with federal
assistance and has made that Policy Statement available to the public. This
Policy Statement addresses Paratransit, Inc.’s commitment to avoiding
discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin. In addition,
Paratransit, Inc. has developed an Implementation Procedure and Complaint
Process that provides the following additional information:

e A description of Title VI and the civil rights protections it affords

e |nstructions on how to file a Title VI complaint

e A description of the process for handling complaints and notifying the
complainant

e A description of who can file complaints and where to file them.



Paratransit’s “Policy Statement on Non-Discrimination and Title VI Civil
Rights Protections,” which includes a public notification of rights, is shown in
Appendix 2. All of these documents can be translated into various languages
upon request. In addition, Paratransit's Title VI Policy Statement and
Implementation Procedure are included on Paratransit's web site at
www.paratransit.org



http://www.paratransit.org/

Appendix 1

FY 2025 Certifications and Assurances
Executed by Paratransit, Inc.



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

Not every provision of every certification will apply to every applicant or award. If a provision
of a certification does not apply to the applicant or its award, FTA will not enforce that
provision.

Text in italic is not part of a certification and is of no legal effect. Its purpose is to provide
explanation and context for the certification.

CATEGORY 1. CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES REQUIRED OF EVERY
APPLICANT.

All applicants must make the certifications in this category.
1.1. Standard Assurances.

The certifications in this subcategory appear as part of the applicant’s registration or annual
registration renewal in the System for Award Management (SAM.gov) and on the Office of
Management and Budget’s standard form 424B “Assurances—Non-Construction Programs”.
This certification has been modified in places to include analogous certifications required by
U.S. DOT statutes or regulations.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, you certify that the applicant:

(a) Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance and the institutional, managerial
and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project
cost) to ensure proper planning, management and completion of the project described in
this application.

(b) Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if
appropriate, the State, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to
examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the award; and will establish
a proper accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards
or agency directives.

(c) Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose
that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of
interest, or personal gain.

(d) Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of
approval of the awarding agency.

(e) Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4728—
4763) relating to prescribed standards for merit systems for programs funded under one
of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in Appendix A of OPM’s Standards for a Merit
System of Personnel Administration (5 CFR 900, Subpart F).

63} Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are
not limited to:




Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

(2

(h)

(1)

)

3)

(4)

)
(6)
(7

(®)

©)
(10)
(11)

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin, as effectuated by U.S.
DOT regulation 49 CFR Part 21, including any amendments thereto;

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681—
1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex, as
effectuated by U.S. DOT regulation 49 CFR Part 25;

Section 5332 of the Federal Transit Law (49 U.S.C. § 5332), which prohibits any
person being excluded from participating in, denied a benefit of, or discriminated
against under, a project, program, or activity receiving financial assistance from
FTA because of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, or age.
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794),
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, as effectuated by U.S.
DOT regulation 49 CFR Part 27;

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6107),
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age;

The Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended,
relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse;

The comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and
Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism;

Sections 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§ 290
dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug
abuse patient records;

Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et seq.), as
amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of housing;
Any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which
application for Federal assistance is being made; and,

the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the
application.

Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970
(“Uniform Act”) (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons

displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or federally-assisted
programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project
purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases. The requirements of the
Uniform Act are effectuated by U.S. DOT regulation 49 CFR Part 24.

Will comply, as applicable, with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508
and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal

employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

(1)

W)

(k)

)

(n)
(0)

Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis—Bacon Act (40 U.S.C.

§§ 276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. § 276c and 18 U.S.C. § 874), and the

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 327-333), regarding labor

standards for federally assisted construction sub-agreements.

Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a)

of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a

special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if

the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more.

Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the

following:

(1) Institution of environmental quality control measures under the National
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO)
11514;

2) Notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738;

3) Protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990;

4) Evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988;

(%) Assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program
developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§ 1451
et seq.);

(6) Conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under
Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et
seq.);

(7) Protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking
Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and

(8) Protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as
amended (P.L. 93-205).

Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§ 1271 et seq.)

related to protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic

rivers system.

Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National

Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 470), EO 11593

(identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic

Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§ 469a-1 et seq.).

Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of human subjects involved in

research, development, and related activities supported by this award of assistance.

Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended,

7 U.S.C. §§ 2131 et seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of warm blooded

animals held for research, teaching, or other activities supported by this award of

assistance.



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

(p)

(@

(r)

(s)

Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 4801 et

seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or rehabilitation of

residence structures.

Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance

with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F, “Audit

Requirements”, as adopted and implemented by U.S. DOT at 2 CFR Part 1201.

Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive orders,

regulations, and policies governing the program under which it is applying for assistance.

Will comply with the requirements of Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims

Protection Act (TVPA) of 2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. § 7104) which prohibits grant

award recipients or a subrecipient from:

(1) Engaging in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that
the award is in effect;

(2) Procuring a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in
effect; or

3) Using forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the
award.

1.2. Standard Assurances: Additional Assurances for Construction Projects.

This certification appears on the Office of Management and Budget’s standard form 424D
“Assurances—Construction Programs” and applies specifically to federally assisted projects for
construction. This certification has been modified in places to include analogous certifications
required by U.S. DOT statutes or regulations.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, you certify that the applicant:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the terms of the real property title or
other interest in the site and facilities without permission and instructions from the
awarding agency; will record the Federal awarding agency directives; and will include a
covenant in the title of real property acquired in whole or in part with Federal assistance
funds to assure nondiscrimination during the useful life of the project.

Will comply with the requirements of the assistance awarding agency with regard to the
drafting, review, and approval of construction plans and specifications.

Will provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering supervision at the
construction site to ensure that the complete work confirms with the approved plans and
specifications, and will furnish progressive reports and such other information as may be
required by the assistance awarding agency or State.



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

1.3. Procurement.

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, 2 CFR § 200.325, allow a recipient to self-certify
that its procurement system complies with Federal requirements, in lieu of submitting to certain
pre-procurement reviews.

The applicant certifies that its procurement system complies with:

(a) U.S. DOT regulations, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 1201, which incorporates by
reference U.S. OMB regulatory guidance, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 200, particularly 2
CFR §§ 200.317-200.327 “Procurement Standards;

(b) Federal laws, regulations, and requirements applicable to FTA procurements; and

(c) The latest edition of FTA Circular 4220.1 and other applicable Federal guidance.

1.4. Increased Micro-Purchase Threshold.

A recipient may establish a micro-purchase threshold that is higher than the Federal micro-
purchase threshold. Pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.320(a)(1)(iv), the recipient may self-certify a
micro-purchase threshold up to $50,000. Pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.320(a)(1)(v), the recipient
may set a micro-purchase threshold higher than 350,000, but only with the approval of the
recipient’s Federal cognizant agency for indirect costs. To determine an applicant’s cognizant
agency for indirect costs, consult the definition of “cognizant agency for indirect costs” in 2
CFR § 200.1.

If the recipient uses a micro-purchase threshold that is higher than the Federal micro-purchase
threshold, the recipient certifies:

(a) The recipient’s micro-purchase threshold does not exceed $50,000, or the recipient has
approval from its Federal cognizant agency for indirect costs to use a higher micro-
purchase threshold;

(b) The recipient has a written justification for its micro-purchase threshold; and

(©) The recipient has supporting documentation of any of the following:

(1) The recipient qualifies as a low-risk auditee, in accordance with the criteria in 2
CFR § 200.520 for the most recent audit;

(2) The recipient has an annual internal institutional risk assessment to identify,
mitigate, and manage financial risks; or

3) For public institutions, a higher threshold is consistent with State law.



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

1.5. Suspension and Debarment.

Pursuant to Executive Order 12549, as implemented at 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200, prior to
entering into a covered transaction with an applicant, FTA must determine whether the applicant
is excluded from participating in covered non-procurement transactions. For this purpose, FTA
is authorized to collect a certification from each applicant regarding the applicant’s exclusion
status. 2 CFR § 180.300. Additionally, each applicant must disclose any information required by
2 CFR § 180.335 about the applicant and the applicant’s principals prior to entering into an
award agreement with FTA. This certification serves both purposes.

The applicant certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that the applicant and each of its
principals:

(a) Is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily or involuntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal
department or agency;

(b) Has not, within the preceding three years, been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against him or her for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public or private agreement or
transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes, including those proscribing
price fixing between competitors, allocation of customers between competitors, and bid
rigging; commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction
of records, making false statements, tax evasion, receiving stolen property, making false
claims, or obstruction of justice; or commission of any other offense indicating a lack of
business integrity or business honesty;

(c) Is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any offense described in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and

(d) Has not, within the preceding three years, had one or more public transactions (Federal,
State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

1.6. Lobbying.

If the applicant will apply for a grant or cooperative agreement exceeding $100,000, or a loan,
line of credit, loan guarantee, or loan insurance exceeding $150,000, it must make the following
certification and, if applicable, make a disclosure regarding the applicant’s lobbying activities.
This certification is required by 49 CFR § 20.110 and app. A to that part.

This certification does not apply to an applicant that is an Indian Tribe, Indian organization, or
an Indian tribal organization exempt from the requirements of 49 CFR Part 20.



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

1.6.1. Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements.
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment,
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member
of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure
Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

(©) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who
fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

1.6.2. Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance.
The undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

If any funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this commitment
providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall complete and
submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its
instructions.

Submission of this statement is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required statement



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each
such failure.

1.7. Real Property Use

This certification responds to Recommendation #7 in the U.S. Department of Transportation’s
Office of Inspector General Report FS2024025 (May 20, 2024).

If the applicant will use assistance provided by the Federal Transit Administration to acquire or
improve real property, the applicant certifies that it will comply with the requirements of 2 CFR
§ 200.311, including but not limited to, requirements to use the property for the purposes
authorized in its award, and to seek disposition instructions from FTA when the property no
longer is needed for any authorized purpose.

CATEGORY 2. PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AGENCY SAFETY PLANS

This certification is required of each applicant under the Urbanized Area Formula Grants
Program (49 U.S.C. § 5307), each rail operator that is subject to FTA's state safety oversight
programs, and each State that is required to draft and certify a Public Transportation Agency
Safety Plan on behalf of a Small Public Transportation Provider (as that term is defined at 49
CFR § 673.5) pursuant to 49 CFR § 673.11(d).

This certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5307(c)(1)(L), 49 U.S.C. § 5329(d)(1), and 49 CFR
§ 673.13. This certification is a condition of receipt of Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program
(49 U.S.C. § 5307) funding.

This certification does not apply to any applicant that only receives financial assistance from
FTA under the Formula Grants for the Enhanced Mobility of Seniors Program (49 U.S.C.

§ 5310), the Formula Grants for Rural Areas Program (49 U.S.C. § 5311), or combination of
these two programs, unless it operates a rail fixed guideway public transportation system.

If the applicant is an operator, the applicant certifies that it has established a Public
Transportation Agency Safety Plan meeting the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5329(d)(1) and

49 CFR Part 673; including, specifically, that the board of directors (or equivalent entity) of the
applicant has approved, or, in the case of an applicant that will apply for assistance under 49
U.S.C. § 5307 that is serving an urbanized area with a population of 200,000 or more, the safety
committee of the entity established under 49 U.S.C. § 5329(d)(5), followed by the board of
directors (or equivalent entity) of the applicant has approved, the Public Transportation Agency
Safety Plan or any updates thereto; and, for each recipient serving an urbanized area with a
population of fewer than 200,000, that the Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan has been
developed in cooperation with frontline employee representatives.



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

If the applicant is a State that drafts and certifies a Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan on
behalf of a public transportation operator, the applicant certifies that:

(a) It has drafted and certified a Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan meeting the
requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5329(d)(1) and 49 CFR Part 673 for each Small Public
Transportation Provider (as that term is defined at 49 CFR § 673.5) in the State, unless
the Small Public Transportation Provider provided notification to the State that it was
opting out of the State-drafted plan and drafting its own Public Transportation Agency
Safety Plan; and

(b) Each Small Public Transportation Provider within the State that opts to use a State-
drafted Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan has a plan that has been approved by
the provider’s Accountable Executive (as that term is defined at 49 CFR § 673.5), Board
of Directors or Equivalent Authority (as that term is defined at 49 CFR § 673.5), and, if
the Small Public Transportation Provider serves an urbanized area with a population of
200,000 or more, the safety committee of the Small Public Transportation Provider
established under 49 U.S.C. § 5329(d)(5).

CATEGORY 3. TAX LIABILITY AND FELONY CONVICTIONS.

If the applicant is a business association (regardless of for-profit, not for-profit, or tax-exempt
status), it must make this certification. Federal appropriations acts since at least 2014 have
prohibited FTA from using funds to enter into an agreement with any corporation that has
unpaid Federal tax liabilities or recent felony convictions without first considering the
corporation for debarment. E.g., Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2024, Pub. L. 118-
47, div. B, tit. VII, §§ 744-745. U.S. DOT Order 4200.6 defines a “corporation” as “any private
corporation, partnership, trust, joint-stock company, sole proprietorship, or other business
association”, and applies the restriction to all tiers of subawards. As prescribed by U.S. DOT
Order 4200.6, FTA requires each business association applicant to certify as to its tax and
felony status.

If the applicant is a private corporation, partnership, trust, joint-stock company, sole
proprietorship, or other business association, the applicant certifies that:

(a) It has no unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and
administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in
a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting
the tax liability; and

(b) It has not been convicted of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law within the
preceding 24 months.



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

CATEGORY 4. PRIVATE SECTOR PROTECTIONS.

If the applicant will apply for funds that it will use to acquire or operate public transportation
facilities or equipment, the applicant must make the following certification regarding protections
for the private sector.

4.1. Charter Service Agreement.

To enforce the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(d), FTA's charter service regulation requires each
applicant seeking assistance from FTA for the purpose of acquiring or operating any public
transportation equipment or facilities to make the following Charter Service Agreement. 49 CFR
§604.4.

The applicant agrees that it, and each of its subrecipients, and thirdparty contractors at any level
who use FTA-funded vehicles, may provide charter service using equipment or facilities
acquired with Federal assistance authorized under the Federal Transit Laws only in compliance
with the regulations set out in 49 CFR Part 604, the terms and conditions of which are
incorporated herein by reference.

4.2. School Bus Agreement.

To enforce the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(f), FTA’s school bus regulation requires each
applicant seeking assistance from FTA for the purpose of acquiring or operating any public

transportation equipment or facilities to make the following agreement regarding the provision
of school bus services. 49 CFR § 605.15.

(a) If the applicant is not authorized by the FTA Administrator under 49 CFR § 605.11 to
engage in school bus operations, the applicant agrees and certifies as follows:
(1) The applicant and any operator of project equipment agrees that it will not engage
in school bus operations in competition with private school bus operators.
(2) The applicant agrees that it will not engage in any practice which constitutes a
means of avoiding the requirements of this agreement, part 605 of the Federal
Mass Transit Regulations, or section 164(b) of the Federal-Aid Highway Act of
1973 (49 U.S.C. 1602a(b)).
(b) If the applicant is authorized or obtains authorization from the FTA Administrator to
engage in school bus operations under 49 CFR § 605.11, the applicant agrees as follows:
(1) The applicant agrees that neither it nor any operator of project equipment will
engage in school bus operations in competition with private school bus operators
except as provided herein.
(2) The applicant, or any operator of project equipment, agrees to promptly notify the
FTA Administrator of any changes in its operations which might jeopardize the
continuation of an exemption under § 605.11.

10



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

3) The applicant agrees that it will not engage in any practice which constitutes a
means of avoiding the requirements of this agreement, part 605 of the Federal
Transit Administration regulations or section 164(b) of the Federal-Aid Highway
Act of 1973 (49 U.S.C. 1602a(b)).

(4) The applicant agrees that the project facilities and equipment shall be used for the
provision of mass transportation services within its urban area and that any other
use of project facilities and equipment will be incidental to and shall not interfere
with the use of such facilities and equipment in mass transportation service to the
public.

CATEGORY 5. TRANSIT ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN.

If the applicant owns, operates, or manages capital assets used to provide public transportation,
the following certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5326(a).

The applicant certifies that it is in compliance with 49 CFR Part 625.
CATEGORY 6. ROLLING STOCK BUY AMERICA REVIEWS AND BUS TESTING.
6.1. Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews.

If the applicant will apply for an award to acquire rolling stock for use in revenue service, it
must make this certification. This certification is required by 49 CFR § 663.7.

The applicant certifies that it will conduct or cause to be conducted the pre-award and post-
delivery audits prescribed by 49 CFR Part 663 and will maintain on file the certifications
required by Subparts B, C, and D of 49 CFR Part 663.

6.2. Bus Testing.

If the applicant will apply for funds for the purchase or lease of any new bus model, or any bus
model with a major change in configuration or components, the applicant must make this
certification. This certification is required by 49 CFR § 665.7.

The applicant certifies that the bus was tested at the Bus Testing Facility established in
accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 5318 (currently the Larson Transportation Institute’s Bus Research
and Testing Center at Pennsylvania State University) and that the bus received a passing test
score as required by 49 CFR Part 665. The applicant has received or will receive the appropriate
full Bus Testing Report and any applicable partial testing reports before final acceptance of the
first vehicle.

11



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

CATEGORY 7. URBANIZED AREA FORMULA GRANTS PROGRAM.

If the applicant will apply for an award under the Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program
(49 U.S.C. § 5307), or any other program or award that is subject to the requirements of

49 U.S.C. § 5307, including the Formula Grants for the Enhanced Mobility of Seniors Program
(49 U.S.C. § 5310); “flex funds” from infrastructure programs administered by the Federal
Highways Administration (see 49 U.S.C. § 5334(i)), projects that will receive an award
authorized by the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (“TIFIA”)

(23 U.S.C. §§ 601-609) or State Infrastructure Bank Program (23 U.S.C. § 610) (see 49 U.S.C.
§ 5323(0)); formula awards or competitive awards to urbanized areas under the Grants for
Buses and Bus Facilities Program (49 U.S.C. § 5339(a) and (b)), or low or no emission awards
to any area under the Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities Program (49 U.S.C. § 5339(c)), the
applicant must make the following certification. This certification is required by 49 U.S.C.

$3307(c)(1).
The applicant certifies that it:

(a) Has or will have the legal, financial, and technical capacity to carry out the program of
projects (developed pursuant 49 U.S.C. § 5307(b)), including safety and security aspects
of the program;

(b) Has or will have satisfactory continuing control over the use of equipment and facilities;

(©) Will maintain equipment and facilities in accordance with the applicant’s transit asset
management plan;

(d) Will ensure that, during non-peak hours for transportation using or involving a facility or
equipment of a project financed under this section, a fare that is not more than 50 percent
of the peak hour fare will be charged for any—

(1) Senior;

(2) Individual who, because of illness, injury, age, congenital malfunction, or any
other incapacity or temporary or permanent disability (including an individual
who is a wheelchair user or has semi-ambulatory capability), cannot use a public
transportation service or a public transportation facility effectively without special
facilities, planning, or design; and

3) Individual presenting a Medicare card issued to that individual under title II or
XVIII of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 401 et seq., and 1395 et seq.);

(e) In carrying out a procurement under 49 U.S.C. § 5307, will comply with 49 U.S.C.

§§ 5323 (general provisions) and 5325 (contract requirements);

® Has complied with 49 U.S.C. § 5307(b) (program of projects requirements);

(2) Has available and will provide the required amounts as provided by 49 U.S.C. § 5307(d)
(cost sharing);

(h) Will comply with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5303 (metropolitan transportation planning) and 5304
(statewide and nonmetropolitan transportation planning);

12



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

(1)
W)

(k)

)

Has a locally developed process to solicit and consider public comment before raising a

fare or carrying out a major reduction of transportation;

Either—

(1) Will expend for each fiscal year for public transportation security projects,
including increased lighting in or adjacent to a public transportation system
(including bus stops, subway stations, parking lots, and garages), increased
camera surveillance of an area in or adjacent to that system, providing an
emergency telephone line to contact law enforcement or security personnel in an
area in or adjacent to that system, and any other project intended to increase the
security and safety of an existing or planned public transportation system, at least
1 percent of the amount the recipient receives for each fiscal year under 49 U.S.C.
§ 5336; or

(2) Has decided that the expenditure for security projects is not necessary;

In the case of an applicant for an urbanized area with a population of not fewer than
200,000 individuals, as determined by the Bureau of the Census, will submit an annual
report listing projects carried out in the preceding fiscal year under 49 U.S.C. § 5307 for
associated transit improvements as defined in 49 U.S.C. § 5302; and

Will comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5329(d) (public transportation agency safety plan).

CATEGORY 8. FORMULA GRANTS FOR RURAL AREAS.

If the applicant will apply for funds made available to it under the Formula Grants for Rural
Areas Program (49 U.S.C. § 5311), it must make this certification. Paragraph (a) of this
certification helps FTA make the determinations required by 49 U.S.C. § 5311(b)(2)(C).
Paragraph (b) of this certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5311(f)(2). Paragraph (c) of this
certification, which applies to funds apportioned for the Appalachian Development Public
Transportation Assistance Program, is necessary to enforce the conditions of 49 U.S.C.

§ 5311(c)(2)(D).

(a)

(b)

The applicant certifies that its State program for public transportation service projects,

including agreements with private providers for public transportation service—

(1) Provides a fair distribution of amounts in the State, including Indian reservations;
and

(2) Provides the maximum feasible coordination of public transportation service
assisted under 49 U.S.C. § 5311 with transportation service assisted by other
Federal sources; and

If the applicant will in any fiscal year expend less than 15% of the total amount made

available to it under 49 U.S.C. § 5311 to carry out a program to develop and support

intercity bus transportation, the applicant certifies that it has consulted with affected

13



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

intercity bus service providers, and the intercity bus service needs of the State are being

met adequately.

(©) If the applicant will use for a highway project amounts that cannot be used for operating
expenses authorized under 49 U.S.C. § 5311(¢c)(2) (Appalachian Development Public
Transportation Assistance Program), the applicant certifies that—

(1) It has approved the use in writing only after providing appropriate notice and an
opportunity for comment and appeal to affected public transportation providers;
and

(2) It has determined that otherwise eligible local transit needs are being addressed.

CATEGORY 9. FIXED GUIDEWAY CAPITAL INVESTMENT GRANTS AND THE
EXPEDITED PROJECT DELIVERY FOR CAPITAL INVESTMENT GRANTS
PILOT PROGRAM.

If the applicant will apply for an award under any subsection of the Fixed Guideway Capital
Investment Program (49 U.S.C. § 5309), including an award made pursuant to the FAST Act’s
Expedited Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program (Pub. L. 114-94, div. A,
title 111, § 3005(b)), the applicant must make the following certification. This certification is
required by 49 U.S.C. § 5309(c)(2) and Pub. L. 114-94, div. A, title I1I, § 3005(b)(3)(B).

The applicant certifies that it:

(a) Has or will have the legal, financial, and technical capacity to carry out its Award,
including the safety and security aspects of that Award,

(b) Has or will have satisfactory continuing control over the use of equipment and facilities
acquired or improved under its Award.

(c) Will maintain equipment and facilities acquired or improved under its Award in
accordance with its transit asset management plan; and

(d) Will comply with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5303 (metropolitan transportation planning) and 5304
(statewide and nonmetropolitan transportation planning).

CATEGORY 10. GRANTS FOR BUSES AND BUS FACILITIES AND LOW OR NO
EMISSION VEHICLE DEPLOYMENT GRANT PROGRAMS.

If the applicant is in an urbanized area and will apply for an award under subsection (a)
(formula grants), subsection (b) (buses and bus facilities competitive grants), or subsection (c)
(low or no emissions grants) of the Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities Program (49 U.S.C.

$ 5339), the applicant must make the certification in Category 7 for Urbanized Area Formula
Grants (49 U.S.C. § 5307). This certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5339(a)(3), (b)(6), and
(c)(3), respectively.

14



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

If the applicant is in a rural area and will apply for an award under subsection (a) (formula
grants), subsection (b) (bus and bus facilities competitive grants), or subsection (c) (low or no
emissions grants) of the Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities Program (49 U.S.C. § 5339), the
applicant must make the certification in Category 8 for Formula Grants for Rural Areas

(49 U.S.C. § 5311). This certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5339(a)(3), (b)(6), and (c)(3),
respectively.

Making this certification will incorporate by reference the applicable certifications in
Category 7 or Category 8.

If the applicant will receive a competitive award under subsection (b) (buses and bus facilities
competitive grants), or subsection (c) (low or no emissions grants) of the Grants for Buses and
Bus Facilities Program (49 U.S.C. § 5339) related to zero emissions vehicles or related
infrastructure, it must make the following certification. This certification is required by 49
U.S.C. § 5339(d).

The applicant will use 5 percent of grants related to zero emissions vehicles (as defined in 49
U.S.C. § 5339(c)(1)) or related infrastructure under 49 U.S.C. § 5339(b) or (¢) to fund workforce
development training as described in section 49 U.S.C. § 5314(b)(2) (including registered
apprenticeships and other labor-management training programs) under the recipient’s plan to
address the impact of the transition to zero emission vehicles on the applicant’s current
workforce; or the applicant certifies a smaller percentage is necessary to carry out that plan.

CATEGORY 11. ENHANCED MOBILITY OF SENIORS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
DISABILITIES PROGRAMS.

If the applicant will apply for an award under the Formula Grants for the Enhanced Mobility of
Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program (49 U.S.C. § 5310), it must make the
certification in Category 7 for Urbanized Area Formula Grants (49 U.S.C. § 5307). This
certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(e)(1). Making this certification will incorporate by
reference the certification in Category 7, except that FTA has determined that (d), (f), (i), (j), and
(k) of Category 7 do not apply to awards made under 49 U.S.C. § 5310 and will not be enforced.

In addition to the certification in Category 7, the applicant must make the following certification
that is specific to the Formula Grants for the Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with
Disabilities Program. This certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(e)(2).

The applicant certifies that:

(a) The projects selected by the applicant are included in a locally developed, coordinated
public transit-human services transportation plan;

15



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

(b) The plan described in clause (a) was developed and approved through a process that
included participation by seniors, individuals with disabilities, representatives of public,
private, and nonprofit transportation and human services providers, and other members of
the public;

(©) To the maximum extent feasible, the services funded under 49 U.S.C. § 5310 will be
coordinated with transportation services assisted by other Federal departments and
agencies, including any transportation activities carried out by a recipient of a grant from
the Department of Health and Human Services; and

(d) If the applicant will allocate funds received under 49 U.S.C. § 5310 to subrecipients, it
will do so on a fair and equitable basis.

CATEGORY 12. STATE OF GOOD REPAIR GRANTS.

If the applicant will apply for an award under FTA’s State of Good Repair Grants Program
(49 U.S.C. § 5337), it must make the following certification. Because FTA generally does not
review the transit asset management plans of public transportation providers, the asset
management certification is necessary to enforce the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5337(a)(4). The
certification with regard to acquiring restricted rail rolling stock is required by 49 U.S.C.

§ 5323(u)(4). Note that this certification is not limited to the use of Federal funds.

The applicant certifies that the projects it will carry out using assistance authorized by the State
of Good Repair Grants Program, 49 U.S.C. § 5337, are aligned with the applicant’s most recent
transit asset management plan and are identified in the investment and prioritization section of
such plan, consistent with the requirements of 49 CFR Part 625.

If the applicant operates a rail fixed guideway service, the applicant certifies that, in the fiscal
year for which an award is available to the applicant under the State of Good Repair Grants
Program, 49 U.S.C. § 5337, the applicant will not award any contract or subcontract for the
procurement of rail rolling stock for use in public transportation with a rail rolling stock
manufacturer described in 49 U.S.C. § 5323(u)(1).

CATEGORY 13. INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE PROGRAMS.

If the applicant will apply for an award for a project that will include assistance under the
Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (“TIFIA”) Program (23 U.S.C.

$§ 601-609) or the State Infrastructure Banks (“SIB”) Program (23 U.S.C. § 610), it must make
the certifications in Category 7 for the Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program, Category 9
for the Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants program, and Category 12 for the State of
Good Repair Grants program. These certifications are required by 49 U.S.C. § 5323(0).

Making this certification will incorporate the certifications in Categories 7, 9, and 12 by
reference.

16



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

CATEGORY 14. ALCOHOL AND CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES TESTING.

If the applicant will apply for an award under FTA'’s Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program
(49 U.S.C. § 5307), Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Program (49 U.S.C. § 5309), Formula
Grants for Rural Areas Program (49 U.S.C. § 5311), or Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities
Program (49 U.S.C. § 5339) programs, the applicant must make the following certification. The
applicant must make this certification on its own behalf and on behalf of its subrecipients and
contractors. This certification is required by 49 CFR § 655.83.

The applicant certifies that it, its subrecipients, and its contractors are compliant with FTA’s
regulation for the Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations,
49 CFR Part 655.

CATEGORY 15. RAIL SAFETY TRAINING AND OVERSIGHT.

If the applicant is a State with at least one rail fixed guideway system, or is a State Safety
Oversight Agency, or operates a rail fixed guideway system, it must make the following
certification. The elements of this certification are required by 49 CFR §§ 672.31 and 674.39.

The applicant certifies that the rail fixed guideway public transportation system and the State
Safety Oversight Agency for the State are:

(a) Compliant with the requirements of 49 CFR Part 672, “Public Transportation Safety
Certification Training Program”; and
(b) Compliant with the requirements of 49 CFR Part 674, “Sate Safety Oversight”.

CATEGORY 16. DEMAND RESPONSIVE SERVICE.

If the applicant operates demand responsive service and will apply for an award to purchase a
non-rail vehicle that is not accessible within the meaning of 49 CFR Part 37, it must make the
following certification. This certification is required by 49 CFR § 37.77.

The applicant certifies that the service it provides to individuals with disabilities is equivalent to
that provided to other persons. A demand responsive system, when viewed in its entirety, is
deemed to provide equivalent service if the service available to individuals with disabilities,
including individuals who use wheelchairs, is provided in the most integrated setting appropriate
to the needs of the individual and is equivalent to the service provided other individuals with
respect to the following service characteristics:

(a) Response time;

(b) Fares;

(c) Geographic area of service;
(d) Hours and days of service;

17



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

(e) Restrictions or priorities based on trip purpose;
® Availability of information and reservation capability; and
(2) Any constraints on capacity or service availability.

CATEGORY 17. INTEREST AND FINANCING COSTS.

If the applicant will pay for interest or other financing costs of a project using assistance
awarded under the Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program (49 U.S.C. § 5307), the Fixed
Guideway Capital Investment Grants Program (49 U.S.C. § 5309), or any program that must
comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, including the Formula Grants for the
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors Program (49 U.S.C. § 5310), “flex funds” from infrastructure
programs administered by the Federal Highways Administration (see 49 U.S.C. § 5334(i)), or
awards to urbanized areas under the Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities Program (49 U.S.C.
$ 5339), the applicant must make the following certification. This certification is required by
49 U.S.C. §§ 5307(e)(3) and 5309(k)(2)(D).

The applicant certifies that:

(a) Its application includes the cost of interest earned and payable on bonds issued by the
applicant only to the extent proceeds of the bonds were or will be expended in carrying
out the project identified in its application; and

(b) The applicant has shown or will show reasonable diligence in seeking the most favorable
financing terms available to the project at the time of borrowing.

CATEGORY 18. CYBERSECURITY CERTIFICATION FOR RAIL ROLLING STOCK
AND OPERATIONS.

If the applicant operates a rail fixed guideway public transportation system, it must make this
certification. This certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5323(v). For information about
standards or practices that may apply to a rail fixed guideway public transportation system, visit
https://www.nist.gov/cyberframework and https://www.cisa.gov/.

The applicant certifies that it has established a process to develop, maintain, and execute a
written plan for identifying and reducing cybersecurity risks that complies with the requirements
of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(v)(2).

CATEGORY 19. PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ON INDIAN RESERVATIONS
FORMULA AND DISCRETIONARY PROGRAM (TRIBAL TRANSIT
PROGRAMS).

Before FTA may provide Federal assistance for an Award financed under either the Public
Transportation on Indian Reservations Formula or Discretionary Program authorized under
49 U.S.C. § 5311(c)(1), as amended by the FAST Act, (Tribal Transit Programs), the applicant

18


https://www.nist.gov/cyberframework
https://www.cisa.gov/

Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

must select the Certifications in this Category, except as FTA determines otherwise in writing.
Tribal Transit Program applicants may certify to this Category and Category 1 (Certifications
and Assurances Required of Every Applicant) and need not make any other certification, to meet
Tribal Transit Program certification requirements. If an applicant will apply for any program in
addition to the Tribal Transit Program, additional certifications may be required.

FTA has established terms and conditions for Tribal Transit Program grants financed with
Federal assistance appropriated or made available under 49 U.S.C. § 5311(c)(1). The applicant
certifies that:

(a) It has or will have the legal, financial, and technical capacity to carry out its Award,
including the safety and security aspects of that Award.

(b) It has or will have satisfactory continuing control over the use of its equipment and
facilities acquired or improved under its Award.

(c) It will maintain its equipment and facilities acquired or improved under its Award, in
accordance with its transit asset management plan and consistent with FTA regulations,
“Transit Asset Management,” 49 CFR Part 625. Its Award will achieve maximum
feasible coordination with transportation service financed by other federal sources.

(d) With respect to its procurement system:

(1) It will have a procurement system that complies with U.S. DOT regulations,
“Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 1201, which incorporates by reference
U.S. OMB regulatory guidance, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 200, for
Awards made on or after December 26, 2014,

(2) It will have a procurement system that complies with U.S. DOT regulations,
“Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements
to State and Local Governments,” 49 CFR Part 18, specifically former 49 CFR
§ 18.36, for Awards made before December 26, 2014, or

3) It will inform FTA promptly if its procurement system does not comply with
either of those U.S. DOT regulations.

(e) It will comply with the Certifications, Assurances, and Agreements in:

(1) Category 4.1 and 4.2 (Charter Service Agreement and School Bus Agreement),

(2) Category 5 (Transit Asset Management Plan),

3) Category 6.1 and 6.2 (Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing),

4) Category 8 (Formula Grants for Rural Areas),

(%) Category 14 (Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing), and

(6) Category 16 (Demand Responsive Service).

19



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

CATEGORY 20. EMERGENCY RELIEF PROGRAM.

An applicant to the Public Transportation Emergency Relief Program, 49 U.S.C. § 5324, must
make the following certification. The certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5324(f) and must be
made before the applicant can receive a grant under the Emergency Relief program.

The applicant certifies that the applicant has insurance required under State law for all structures
related to the emergency relief program grant application.

20



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2025 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant:_ Paratransit, Inc. The

Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: (check here) X .
Or,

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Category Certification

01  Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant

02  Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03  Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Private Sector Protections

05  Transit Asset Management Plan

06  Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

07  Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

08 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

09  Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

10 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs

11 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs




Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

12 State of Good Repair Grants

13 Infrastructure Finance Programs

14 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

15  Rail Safety Training and Oversight

16  Demand Responsive Service

17  Interest and Financing Costs

18  Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations

19  Tribal Transit Programs

20  Emergency Relief Program

CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES SIGNATURE PAGE

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT

Name of the Applicant: Tiffani M. Scott

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalf of the Applicant, I declare that it has duly authorized me to make these
Certifications and Assurances and bind its compliance. Thus, it agrees to comply with all federal laws, regulations,
and requirements, follow applicable federal guidance, and comply with the Certifications and Assurances as
indicated on the foregoing page applicable to each application its Authorized Representative makes to the Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) in the federal fiscal year, irrespective of whether the individual that acted on his or
her Applicant’s behalf continues to represent it.

The Certifications and Assurances the Applicant selects apply to each Award for which it now seeks, or may
seek in the future, of federal assistance to be awarded by FTA during the federal fiscal year.

The Applicant affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances it has selected in the
statements submitted with this document and any other submission made to FTA, and acknowledges that the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 ef seq., and implementing U.S. DOT regulations,
“Program Fraud Civil Remedies,” 49 CFR part 31, apply to any certification, assurance or submission made to
FTA. The criminal provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 apply to any certification, assurance, or submission made in
connection with a federal public transportation program authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other statute

In signing this document, I declare under penalties of perjury that the foregoing Certifications and Assurances, and
any other statements made by me on behalf of the Applicant are true and accurate.

:__ \\IUII_—__- '1."‘. '|__ ¢ 8/05/2025
Signature i rlr.J LAY ot Date:
. g | b1
e I"x_ _-J.



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2025

Name Osman I. Mu ftl Authorized Representative of Applicant

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT’S ATTORNEY

For (Name of Applicant): Paratransit, Inc.

As the undersigned Attorney for the above-named Applicant, I hereby affirm the Applicant has the authority under
state, local, or tribal government law, as applicable, to make and comply with the Certifications and Assurances as
indicated on the foregoing pages. I further affirm that, in my opinion, the Certifications and Assurances have been
legally made and constitute legal and binding obligations on it.

I further affirm that, to the best of my knowledge, there is no legislation or litigation pending or imminent that
might adversely affect the validity of these Certifications and Assurances, or of the performance of its FTA
assisted Award.

(Farrrme - 7774 F pate: __8/5/2025

Signature

Osman |. Mufti Attorney for Applicant

Name

Each Applicant for federal assistance to be awarded by FTA must provide an Affirmation of Applicant’s Attorney
pertaining to the Applicant’s legal capacity. The Applicant may enter its electronic signature in lieu of the
Attorney’s signature within TrAMS, provided the Applicant has on file and uploaded to TrAMS this hard-copy
Affirmation, signed by the attorney and dated this federal fiscal year.



Appendix 2

Paratransit, Inc. Policy Statement of Non-
Discrimination and Title VI Civil Rights
Protections



R

Paratransit, Inc.
Policy Statement on Non-Discrimination

Paratransit Inc. treats its customers with respect,
integrity, and loyalty.

The Board of Directors of Paratransit, Inc., takes this
opportunity to express one of its highest priorities in the
area of operating federally-funded programs (i.e.,
employment and training, community services, etc.). This
priority is assuring that administration of Paratransit, Inc., |
and federally-funded programs administered by Paratransit,
Inc., operate with the common goal of providing equal
opportunity to federally-funded staff and participants.

Paratransit, Inc. operates its programs without regard to
race, color, creed, national origin, religion, sex, sexual
preference, marital status, age, medical condition, or
disability in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act, California Civil Code section 51(b), or other
applicable law. For more information, contact Paratransit,
Inc.’s Administrative Office at (916) 429-2009 or email

 paratransit@paratransit.org.

Paratransit, Inc., will take positive measures toward
eliminating architectural barriers, artificial barriers and
achieving equal opportunity through its continued
implementation of its Affirmative Action Program.



N2

Paratransit, Inc., will also take positive measures to
accomplish its objectives of the program and to ensure that
no person is discriminated against because of sex, age,
race, creed, color, handicap, religion, national origin,
political affiliation or belief, or heritage.

The Board of Directors specifically prohibits any form of
sexual harassment within Paratransit, Inc, or any federally-
funded program. Any federally-funded staff member,
participant, or applicant to a federally funded program who
feels he or she has been discriminated against, should
contact Paratransit, Inc.'s, Equal Employment Opportunity
Officer/ADA Coordinator by telephone at 429-2009 or in
writing at 2501 Florn Rd., Sacramento, California,
05822-0121.

Policy Statement on Title VI Civil Rights Protections

The Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VI, states that "No
person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race,
color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in,
be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination
under any program or activity receiving Federal financial
assistance."”

Paratransit, Inc. is committed to complying with the
requirements of Title VI in all of its federally funded
programs and activities.



7
——

\\_/

Filing a Title VI Complaint

Persons who believe they have been aggrieved by an
unlawful discriminatory practice under Title VI may file a
complaint with Paratransit, Inc. For information on filing a
complaint, contact Paratransit, Inc.’s Administrative
Office. Complaints must be in writing and must be filed
within 180 days following the date of the alleged
discriminatory occurrence.

Email: paratransit@paratransit.org
Phone: (916) 429-2009

Mail: Paratransit, Inc.
Attention: Civil Rights Coordinator
2501 Florin Rd., Sacramento, CA 95822-0121



g

Paratransit, Inc.

Decleracion de politica sobre No Discriminacion

Paratransit Inc, trata sus clientes con respeto, integridad y lealtad.

La Junta Directiva de Paratransit, Inc., aprovecha esta oportunidad para expresar una de
sus mayores prioridades en el area de operar programas financiados por el gobierno
Federal (es decir, empleo y formacion, servicios comunitarios, etc.) Esta prioridad asegura
que la Adminstracion de Paratansit, Inc., y los programas financiados por el gobierno
Federal Administrados por Paratransit, Inc., operan con el objectivo comun de
proporcionar igualdad de oportunidades para el personal financiado por el gobierno
federal y los participantes.

Paratransit, Inc. opera sus programas sin distincion de raza, color, credo, origen nacional,
religion, sexo, preferencia sexual, estado civil, edad, condicion medica o discapacidad de

acuerdo con laley del Title VI de derechos civiles de California Seccion civil 51 (b), u otras
layes aplicables. Para mas informacion, ponerse en contacto con la Oficina Administrativa

de Paratransit, Inc, al 916-429-2009 o por email paratransit@paratransit.org.

Paratransit, Inc.,, tomara medidas positivas hacia la eliminacion de barreras
arquitectonicas, barreras artificiales y lograr la igualdad de oportunidades a traves de su
continua implementacion de su programa de Accion Afirmativa.

Paratransit, Inc. tambien tomara medidas positivas para lograr los objetivos del programa y
para asegurar que ninguna persona sea discriminada por sexo, edad, raza, credo, color,
discapacidad, religion, origen nacional, afiliacion politica o creencia.

La Junta Directiva especificamente prohibe cualquier forma de acoso sexual dentro de
Paratransit, Inc, o cualquier programa financiado por el gobierno federal. Cualquier
miembro del personal financiado por el gobierno federal, participante o solicitante a un
programa financiado con fondos federales que se siente que el o ella ha sido discriminada,
debe contactar al funcionario/ ADA coordinador de Paratransit, Inc., de Igualdad de
Oportunidad de Empleo por telefono al 429-2009 o por

escrito a 2501 Florin Rd., Sacramento, California, 95822-4467.



N

Declaracion de Politica Sobre Proteccion de los Derechos Civiles de Titulo VI

Laley de Derechos Civiles de 1964, Titulo VI establece que "Ninguna persona en los
Estados Unidos, por razon de raza, color u origen nacional, sea excluida de la participacion
en, ser negada los beneficios de, o ser objeto de discriminacion bajo ningun programa o
actividad recibiendo asistencia financiera Federal".

Paratransit, Inc. se compromete a cumplir con los requisitos del titulo VI en todas sus
actividades y programas financiados por fondos federales.

Como presentar una queja del titulo VI

Las personas que crean que han sido ofendidos por una practica discriminatoria ilegal bajo
el titulo VI pueden presentar una queja con Paratransit, Inc. Para obtener informacion
sobre como presentar una queja, comuniquese con la Oficina Administrativa de Paratransit,
Inc.. Las quejas deben ser por escrito y deben ser presentadas dentro de 180 dias
siguientes a la fecha de la presunta ocurrencia discriminatoria.

Email: paratransit@paratrangit.org
Telefono: (916) 429-2009

Correo: Paratransit, Inc.

Atencion: Coordinador de Derechos Civiles
2501 Florin Rd.

Sacramento, CA 95822-4467



TITLE VI
Title VI is a section of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 requiring

that "No person in the United States shall on the grounds of
race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation
in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimation
under any program or activity receiving federal financial
assistance."

If you believe that you have received discriminatory
treatment by Paratransit, Inc., on the basis of your race,
color or national origin, you have the right to file a complaint
with the Paratransit, Inc., Title VI Coordinatior. For more
information, call 916.429.2009.

TITULO VI

Titulo VI es una seccion de la ley de derechos civiles de 1964
que requieren que "ninguna persona en los Estados Unidos
sera por motivos de raza, color u origen nacional, excluida de
la participacion en, negaran los beneficios de o someterse a
discriminar bajo cualquier programa o actividad que reciba

asistencia financiera federal."

Si usted cree que ha recibido un trato discriminatorio por
Paratransit, Inc., en base a su raza, color u origen nacional,
usted tiene el derecho de presentar una queja con el
Coordinador de paratrénsito, Inc., titulo VI. Para obtener
mas informacion, llame al 916-429-2009.



Paratransit, Inc. JEIXIREXREER

Paratransit, Inc. AELE | FEFBHMMBERFHERER, Paratransit, Inc. EEFHUKERFHET
REMAENMTTE FIpENEN. HERES) FAMEEEHEZz—. SEELASEIHER
Paratransit, Inc. R EE BN EMFENTERMLULER BEEE, BNAKBEMMNETINS

BIEIR T EMBE, Paratransit, Inc. WEBIEBAEEMER. ER. 5. HE. R&H. %3

< EERE. SRIRAKR . FEe. BERKRASEBR, &S (REEE) FAE. MINEEHSE 51(b)
GREMBREE, MTHEZIES, FEBE Paratransit, Inc. {TTBIHAZE, TEE : (916) 429-2009
. B EEFEVYZE paratransit@paratransit.org, Paratransit, Inc. ¥R EViEB IS, FEAEEE
HE#TEHEE, HREEER. AAERITERTERS,

Paratransit, Inc. iR ERiEIBtEE, BRAFEZEEE UHFREMATSRMER . Fin, FEik.
B, Be. BKE., "%, BEfE. BUAIISGHEMNMSERMZIEIR, SSFZHEZRL
Paratransit, Inc. BUERIEEFRE MG E AR AT MR XMW MERE. TOEIPEHET. BEHES

I EBFTEPHFANRI B CZRNIR , FEEHZE Paratransit, Inc. IS EHEE B/ADA HR
8, TEE : 429-2009 (TDD : 429-2568 ; {8E : 429-2409) , ELB{EZE : Paratransit, Inc. Yt
RERAE EBYSFE 231100, EFRAIFE, MY 95823, BAMEARERERENBEREHN 1964
F (REEZE) (BARE) RE : EXE, FRATFSEHEER. EEXEEMBEHRETMES
BB BIEBMIE R SEE b, BN ELESNFIE, XETEZEBHABIEMMNEESRE
EpZENER, ” Paratransit, Inc. EREHBF T EEIDETFEANEMAM AR EE P ERFFAHF
EHRIRT A BIES,

RXEFAERF AR AECZIERERETWIERBERTAREMWAL, ¥FM Paratransit,
Inc. IR 1REF. ARIRKIRFMNIER, B Paratransit, Inc. ITEURAE., RFVAUEAEH IR
X, WHBESHRERITAREAEZBE 180 KNIER., {55 : paratransit@paratransit.org B aa :
(916) 429-2009 B X : (916) 429-2409 EE : Paratransit, Inc. $¢iE - RIERHTE EBIEF 231100
. FERHIFIFE, ANIN 95823



Paratransit, Inc. Txoj Cai Hais Txog Kev Tsis Sib Haum Xeeb

Paratransit Inc. kho nws cov neeg siv khoom nrog kev hwm, kev ncaj ncees, thiab kev ncaj ncees. Pawg
Thawj Coj ntawm Paratransit, Inc., siv lub sijhawm no los ghia txog ib gho ntawm nws ghov tseem ceeb
tshaj plaws hauv cheeb tsam ntawm kev ua haujlwm ntawm tsoomfwv cov nyiaj pab kev kawm (piv txwv
li, kev ua haujlwm thiab kev cob ghia, kev pabcuam hauv zej zog, thiab lwm yam). Qhov tseem ceeb no
yog ua kom ntseeg tau tias kev tswj hwm ntawm Paratransit, Inc., thiab tsoomfwv cov kev pabcuam
nyiaj txiag tswj hwm los ntawm Paratransit, Inc., ua haujlwm nrog lub hom phiaj ntawm kev muab
sijhawm sib npaug rau tsoomfwv cov neeg ua haujlwm thiab cov neeg koom nrog. Paratransit, Inc. ua
haujlwm nws cov haujlwm yam tsis xav txog haiv neeg, xim, kev ntseeg, keeb kwm ntawm lub tebchaws,
kev ntseeg, poj niam txiv neej, nyiam poj niam txiv neej, kev txij nkawm, hnub nyoog, kev mob nkeeg,
lossis kev tsis taus raws li Title VI ntawm Txoj Cai Civil Rights Act, California Civil Code section 51(b),
lossis Iwm txoj cai siv. Yog xav paub ntxiv, hu rau Paratransit, Inc.'s Administration Office ntawm (916)
429-2009 lossis email paratransit@paratransit.org. Paratransit, Inc., yuav siv cov kev ntsuas zoo rau kev
tshem tawm cov teeb meem kev tsim vaj tsev, cov teeb meem kev dag ntxias thiab ua kom muaj kev sib
txig sib luag los ntawm nws txoj kev txuas ntxiv ntawm nws ghov Kev Pom Zoo Ua Haujlwm.

Paratransit, Inc., tseem yuav siv cov kev ntsuas zoo los ua kom tiav nws lub hom phiaj ntawm txoj
haujlwm thiab xyuas kom tsis muaj ib tus neeg raug kev ntxub ntxaug vim yog poj niam txiv neej, hnub
nyoog, haiv neeg, kev ntseeg, xim, kev tsis taus, kev ntseeg, keeb kwm ntawm lub teb chaws, kev koom
nrog kev nom kev tswv lossis kev ntseeg, lossis cuab yeej cuab tam. Pawg Thawj Coj tshwj xeeb txwv tsis
pub muaj kev thab plaub txog kev sib deev hauv Paratransit, Inc, lossis ib gho kev pab cuam nyiaj txiag
los ntawm tsoomfwv. Txhua tus neeg ua haujlwm tau txais nyiaj los ntawm tsoomfwv, tus neeg koom
nrog, lossis tus neeg thov rau tsoomfwv ghov kev pabcuam nyiaj txiag uas xav tias nws tau raug kev
ntxub ntxaug, yuav tsum hu rau Paratransit, Inc.'s, Equal Employment Opportunity Officer/ADA
Coordinator hauv xov tooj ntawm 429-2009 (TDD 429-2429) los yog sau ntawv ntawm 249-2009; P.O.
Box 231100, Sacramento, California, 95823-0401. Txoj Cai Tshaj Tawm ntawm Title VI Civil Rights
Protections Txoj Cai Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VI, tau hais tias "Tsis muaj ib tus neeg hauv Tebchaws
Meskas yuav tsum, vim haiv neeg, xim, lossis lub tebchaws tuaj, raug cais tawm ntawm kev koom nrog,
raug tsis lees paub cov txiaj ntsig ntawm, lossis raug kev ntxub ntxaug raws li ib gho haujlwm lossis kev
ua haujlwm uas tau txais tsoomfwv nyiaj txiag pabcuam." Paratransit, Inc. tau cog lus tias yuav ua raws li
cov cai ntawm Title VI nyob rau hauv tag nrho nws cov kev pab cuam thiab cov dej num ntawm tsoom
fwv.

Kev Ua Ntawv Tsis Txaus Siab Title VI Cov Neeg Uas Tsis Txaus Siab uas ntseeg tias lawv tau ua txhaum
los ntawm kev ntxub ntxaug tsis raug cai raws li Title VI tuaj yeem ua ntawv tsis txaus siab rau
Paratransit, Inc. Yog xav paub txog kev foob, hu rau Paratransit, Inc.'s Administration Office. Cov lus tsis
txaus siab yuav tsum sau ua ntawv thiab yuav tsum tau xa hauv 180 hnub tom gab hnub uas muaj kev
ntxub ntxaug tshwm sim. Email: paratransit@paratransit.org Xov tooj: (916) 429-2009 Fax: (916) 429-
2409 Mail: Paratransit, Inc. Attention: Civil Rights Coordinator P.O. Box 231100 Sacramento, CA 95823



3aasneHune o NOANTUKe KoMnaHuu Paratransit, Inc. 0 HegUCKpUMMHaUMK

KomnaHua Paratransit, Inc. OTHOCUTCA K CBOMM K/IMEHTAM C yBaXKEHUEM, YECTHOCTBIO U I0ANILHOCTBIO.
CoBeT AMpeKTopoB KOMMNaHUK Paratransit, Inc. Noab3yeTcsA 3TOM BOSMOXKHOCTbIO, 4TOBbl 0603HAUNTL
OZIMH U3 CBOMX Ba*KHEMNLLMX NPUOPUTETOB B 061aCTM peannsauumn nporpamm, GUHaHCUPyEMbIX U3
depepanbHoro broaxketa (Hanpumep, TPYAOYCTPOUCTBO M 0OyYeHUE, 0OLLECTBEHHbIE YCAYTU U T. 4.).
3TOT NpMOpPUTET 3aKNtovaeTca B obecnevyeHnn Toro, 4tTobbl agMmnHUCTpauma Paratransit, Inc. n
durHaHcMpyemble 13 peaepanbHOro brogyKeTa nporpammbl, agMUHUCTPUPYeMble Paratransit, Inc.,
AencTBOBaNM € 06LLEN LeNiblo — NpeaoCcTaBNEHNEM PABHbIX BO3MOXKHOCTEN COTPYAHUKAM U
y4YaCTHMKam nporpamm, GuHaHcMpyemblx U3 peaepanbHoro 6roaxkeTa. Paratransit, Inc. ocywectenser
CBOW MPOrpaMmbl HE3ABMCMMO OT Pachl, LiBETA KOXKWN, BEPOUCMNOBEAAHNA, HALLMOHANBbHOTO
NPOUCXOXKAEHWUSA, PEANTUN, NONA, CEKCYaNbHOM OPUEHTALMMN, CEMENHOTO NOJIOXKEHWUSA, BO3PacTa,
COCTOAHMA 340POBbA NN MHBAIMAHOCTU B cOOTBETCTBMM € Pasgenom VI 3akoHa 0O rpa*kgaHCKUx npasax,
pasgenom 51(b) MpaxkaaHcKkoro Kogekca KanndopHuu n Apyrumu npumeHMMbIMU 3aKoHamK. s
noayyYyeHuA AONONHUTENbHON MHPOPMALIMKM 06paTUTECH B aAMUHUCTPATUBHBINA OPUC KOMNAHUK
Paratransit, Inc. no TenedpoHy (916) 429-2009 nunun no sNeKTPOHHOK NoyTe paratransit@paratransit.org.
KomnaHua Paratransit, Inc. npumeT akTUBHblE Mepbl N0 YCTPAHEHUIO APXUTEKTYPHbLIX U UCKYCCTBEHHbIX
6apbepoB M SOCTUNKEHUIO PaBHbIX BO3MOXKHOCTEM NOCPeACTBOM AasibHelwel peanmsaumnm MNporpammel
NO3UTUBHbIX AENCTBUNA.

KomnaHua Paratransit, Inc. Tak:Ke NpUMeT NO3UTUBHbIE MEpPbI 417 AOCTUKEHMA Lienei Nporpammsbl U
obecnevyeHns OTCYTCTBUS AMCKPUMMHALMKM NO NPU3HAKY Nona, BO3pacTa, pacbl, BEpoMUCNoBeaaHMs,
LBETa KOXMW, MHBAIMAHOCTN, PEINTUA, HALMOHANBHOTO MPOUCXOKAEHUA, MONNTUYECKUX B3TNAL0B UK
yberaeHuni, a Takke npoucxoxaeHua. CoBeT AMPEeKTOpOoB NPsSMO 3anpeLlaeT nobblie popmbl
CEeKCyanbHbIX loMOraTensCeTs B Paratransit, Inc. unmn ntoboi gpyroii nporpamme, dGMHaHCMpPyeMoi 13
depepanbHoro 6roarkeTa. Jloboi COTPYAHUK, YHACTHUK UM KaHAMAAT Ha y4acTue B MporpaMme,
duHaHCcKMpyemoli u3 peaepanbHoro 6oaxKeTa, cCUMTalOWMI, YTO NOABEPrca AUCKPUMUHALMN, [OKEH
CBA3aTbCA C COTPYAHMKOM NO BOMPOCaM PaBHbIX BO3MOXHOCTEN TPYA0yCTPONCTBa/KOOPAMHATOPOM MO
sBonpocam ADA KomnaHuu Paratransit, Inc. no TenepoHy 429-2009 (TDD 429-2568; darc 429-2409) nnu
HanpaBWUTb NUCbMEHHOE yBeJomaeHue no aapecy: a/a 231100, CakpameHTo, KanndbopHusa, 95823-0401.
3aABaeHMne 0 NOANTUKE B OTHOLLEHUM 3aLMTbI FPaXKAAHCKMX NpaB B COOTBETCTBMU € Pasgenom VI. 3akoH
O rpa*kgaHckmx npasax 1964 roga, Pasgen VI, rnacut: «Hu ogHo nnuo B CoegmHeHHbIx WTaTax He
MOXKET BbITb UCKNOYEHO M3 Y4aCTUSA, IULIEHO NbIOT UM NOABEPTHYTO ANCKPUMMUHALMM NO NPU3HAKY
pachbl, LLBETA KOXM UN HAaUMOHAIbHOTO NPOUCXOXKAEHUA B pamMKax 10601 nporpammbl MU
AeaTeNbHOCTU, Nonydatolel degepanbHyto GUHAHCOBYIO NOMOLLb». Paratransit, Inc. 06asyeTca
cobntopaTb TpebosaHMA Pasgena VI BO Bcex CBOMX MPOrpaMmax U Meponpuatuax, GUHaHCMpPyeMbix U3
denepanbHoro broaxkeTa.

Mogaya *anobbl B cooTBeTcTBUM C Pazaenom VI. [inua, cunTatowme, 4to ux npasa bbiam yLemneHol
HE3aKOHHOW AMCKPMMMHALMOHHOM NPaKTUKOW, npegycmoTpeHHon Pasgenom VI, moryT nogatb Kanoby
B KOmnaHwuto Paratransit, Inc. 3a MHpopmaumelt o nogaye Kanobbl obpallaiTecb B aAMUHUCTPATUBHBIN
oduc Paratransit, Inc. }anobbi 40aKHbI O6bITb NOAAHbI B TUCbMEHHON dopme B TedeHne 180 aHeit ¢
[aTbl NpeAnosiaraeMoro cayyas AUCKPUMWHAUMK. DNEKTPOHHasA noyTa: paratransit@paratransit.org



TenedoH: (916) 429-2009 Pakc: (916) 429-2409 MouTa: Paratransit, Inc. BHUMaHuto: KoopgmHatopa no
rpaxgaHckum npasam, a/a 231100, CakpameHTo, KanndopHusa, 95823



Tuyén bd Chinh sach cla Paratransit, Inc. vé Khéng Phan biét D&i x{r

Paratransit Inc. d8i xtr véi khach hang bang su ton trong, chinh truc va ldng trung thanh. Hoi dong Quan
tri cha Paratransit, Inc., nhan co hdi nay, xin bay té6 mét trong nhirng wu tién hang dau cda minh trong
[ihh vire van hanh céc chuong trinh do lién bang tai trg (vi du: viéc 1am va dao tao, dich vu cong déng,
v.v.). Uu tién nay 13 ddm bao rang viéc quan ly Paratransit, Inc. va cac chuong trinh do lién bang tai tro
do Paratransit, Inc. quan ly, hoat ddng véi muc tiéu chung 1d mang lai co héi binh dang cho nhan vién va
nguoi tham gia do lién bang tai trg. Paratransit, Inc. van hanh cdc chuong trinh clia minh ma khong
phan biét ching tdc, mau da, tin ngudng, qudc tich, tén gido, gidi tinh, khuynh hudng tinh duc, tinh
trang hdn nhan, tudi tac, tinh trang sirc khde hodc khuyét tat theo Piéu VI clia Pao luat Dan quyén, Diéu
51(b) cGia B6 luat Dan sy California, hodc luat hién hanh khéc. D& biét thém thong tin, vui long lién hé
Van phong Hanh chinh cda Paratransit, Inc. theo s (916) 429-2009 ho&c email
paratransit@paratransit.org. Paratransit, Inc. s& thuc hién cac bién phap tich cic nham xda bé rao can
vé kién tric, rao can nhan tao va dat duogc co hoi binh dang thdng qua viéc tiép tuc thuc hién Chuong
trinh Hanh dong Khang dinh.

Paratransit, Inc. cling s& thuc hién céc bién phdp tich cuc dé dat dugc cdc muc tiéu cla chwong trinh va
dam bao khéng ai bj phan biét ddi x{ vi gidi tinh, tudi tac, ching tdc, tin ngwdng, mau da, khuyét tat,
tdn gido, ngudn gbc qudc gia, khuynh hudng chinh tri hodc niém tin, hodc di san. H6i ddng Quan tri dac
biét nghiém cdm moi hinh thirc qudy réi tinh duc trong Paratransit, Inc., hodc bat ky chwong trinh nao
do lién bang tai trg. B4t ky nhan vién, ngudi tham gia hodc ngudi ndp don nao do lién bang tai tro cho
mét chuwong trinh do lién bang tai trg, néu cdm thay minh bj phan biét d&i x&r, nén lién hé vdi Can bé Co
hoi Viéc lam Binh dang/biéu phdi vién ADA cla Paratransit, Inc. qua dién thoai theo s& 429-2009 (TDD
429-2568; FAX 429-2409) hoic gtri van ban dén dia chi P.O. Box 231100, Sacramento, California, 95823-
0401. Tuyén b6 Chinh séch vé Quyén céng dan theo Quy dinh VI Pao luat Quyén cdng dan ndm 1964,
Quy dinh VI, néu r& rang "Khdng mot ca nhan nao tai Hoa Ky, vi ly do chiing tdc, mau da hodc ngudn géc
qudc gia, bi loai khoi viéc tham gia, bi tir chi céc lgi ich hodc bi phan biét d6i x&r trong bat ky chuwong
trinh hodc hoat dong nao nhan hd tro tai chinh cta Lién bang." Paratransit, Inc. cam két tuan thd cac yéu
cau cta Quy dinh VI trong tat ca cac chuong trinh va hoat dong do lién bang tai tro.

Nop don Khi€u nai theo Diéu VI: Nhitng ngudi tin rang minh bij thiét hai do hanh vi phan biét d&i x(r bat
hop phép theo Diéu VI cé thé ndp don khiéu nai Ién Paratransit, Inc. D& biét thdng tin vé viéc ndp don
khi€u nai, vui long lién hé Van phong Hanh chinh cla Paratransit, Inc. Khiéu nai phai dugc 1ap thanh van
ban va phai dwoc ndp trong vong 180 ngay ké tir ngay xay ra hanh vi phan biét déi x{r bi cdo budc. Email:
paratransit@paratransit.org Dién thoai: (916) 429-2009 Fax: (916) 429-2409 Thu: Paratransit, Inc. GUri:
Diéu phdi vién Dan quyén P.O. Box 231100 Sacramento, CA 95823



Appendix 3

Paratransit, Inc. Implementation Procedure
for Policy on Nondiscrimination and Title VI
Civil Rights Protection



Paratransit, Inc.
implementation Procedure for Policy on Nondiscrimination
and Title VI Civil Rights Protection Page |l

1.0 Policy

2.0

The Board of Directors of Paratransit, Inc., takes this opportunity to
express one of its highest priorities in the area of operating federally-
funded programs (i.e., employment and training, community services,
etc.). This priority is assuring that administration of Paratransit, Inc.,
and federally-funded programs administered by Paratransit, Inc.,
operate with the common goal of providing equal opportunity to
federally-funded staff and participants.

Paratransit, Inc., will take positive measures toward eliminating
architectural barriers and achieving equal opportunity through its
continued implementation of its Affirmative Action Program.
Paratransit, Inc., will also take positive measures to accomplish its
objectives of the program and to ensure that no person is
discriminated against because of sex, age, race, creed, color,
handicap, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, political
affiliation or belief, or heritage, per the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (as
outlined in Title VI of the Act). The Board of Directors also
specifically prohibits any form of sexual harassment within
Paratransit, Inc., or any federally-funded program.

Applicability

This policy applies to any staff member of, participant in, or applicant
to any federally-funded program operated or administered by
Paratransit, Inc.

2.1 The Paratransit, Inc., Civil Rights Coordinator is designated to
coordinate and investigate allegations of noncompliance with the
Policy on Nondiscrimination and Title VI Civil Rights Protections.

2.2 Information regarding this policy may be obtained from the Civil
Rights Coordinator via telephone: Voice: (916) 429-2009 Ext. 302;
TDD: 429-2568; FAX: 429-2409.



N

Paratransit, Inc.
Implementation Procedure for Policy on Nondiscrimination
and Title VI Civil Rights Protection Pagea |2

3.0 Grievance Procedure

3.1 Allegations of noncompliance with this policy shall be signed by
the applicable person and mailed o the address below within 180
days of the date of the alleged discrimination. The written allegation
must coniain the following information:

o Your name, address, and how to contact you (i.e. phone
number, email address, etc)

e How, when, where, and why you believe you were
discriminated against. Include the location, names, and contact
information of any withesses.

This information should provide sufficient detail to help the
designated investigator find a prompt and equitable resolution, and, if
applicable, the specific remedy sought by the grievant.

The complaint may be filed through several methods:

In writing: Paratransit, Inc.
Civil Rights Coordinator
P.O. Box 231100 (
Sacramento, California 95823-0401

Download and Complete a Printable Form: Online at
www.paratransit.org as a PDF document.

Email; paratransit@paratransit.org
By Phone: (916) 429-2009
By Fax:  (916)429-2409
By TTD: (916) 429-2568

Complaint Assistance: Paratransit staff will assist in writing a
complaint if the complainant is unable to do so.

Complainants may also file a Title VI complaint with an external entity such
as the FTA, other federal or state agency, or a federal or state court.
However, should a complaint be filed with the City and an external entity
simultaneously, the external complaint will supersede the City’s complaint



e

Paratransit, Inc.
Implementation Procedure for Policy on Nondiscrimination
and Title VI Civil Rights Protection Page |3

——

and the City’s complaint procedures will be suspended pending the
external entity’s findings.

The complainant also will be advised of histher right to appeal the response
io federal and state authorities as appropriate. The City will use its best
efforts to respond to a Title VI complaint within sixty (60) working days of its
receipt of such a complaint, unless a complaint is filed with the City and an
external entity simultaneously as noted previousty.

In addition to the complaint process at the City, a complainant may file a
Title VI complaint with the:

U.S. Department of Transportation
Federal Transit Administration

Office of Civil Rights, Region IX

201 Mission Street, Suite 1650

San Francisco, California 94105-1839.

3.2 The following definitions control the timelines of this grievance
procedure:

3.2.1 The day of receipt by Paratransit, Inc., of the allegation
shall be the File Date of the allegation.

3.2.2 A business day is a day when the Paratransit, Inc.,
administrative office is open, which is between 8:00 a.m. and
5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.

3.3 If the allegation details are sufficient, the allegation shall be
immediately investigated and a response shall be mailed to the
grievant within thirty (30) business days after the File Date.

3.4 | the allegation details are insufficient, the grievant shall be
notified in writing within fifteen (15) business days after the File Date
of the specific additionai information needed to make it complete.

3.4.1 If the grievant fails to provide the additional needed
information within thirty (30) business days after the File Date,
the grievance shall be closed.



Paratransit, inc.
implementation Procedure for Policy on Nondiscrimination
and Title VI Civil Rights Protection Page |4

4.0

3.4.2 If the grievant provides the additional information needed
to complete the allegation, it shall be immediately investigated
and a response shall be mailed to the grievant no later than
sixty (60) business days after the File Date.

3.5 All written responses to allegations of discrimination shall
undergo review by Paratransit, Inc., legal staff before being mailed to
any grievant. Disciplinary actions administered to employees of
Paratransit, Inc., resulting from this grievance procedure will not be
divulged.

Notice

The Paratransit, Inc., Policy on Nondiscrimination and Title VI Civil
Rights Protections shall be published in the Paratransit, Inc., Policies
Related to Individual Users of Paratransit’s Service as it may be
amended from time to time. The Collective Bargaining Agreement
Between Paratransit, Inc., and the Drivers' union contain a similar
nondiscrimination policy applicable to both parties. This
implementation procedure shall be provided upon request, in
accessible formats as necessary, to applicable persons and other
interested persons.

Attachment; Title Vi Complaint Form



e

Paratransit, Inc.

Procedimiento de aplicacion para la politica de no
Discriminacion y el Titulo VI de Proteccion de los Derechos
Civiles

1.0 Politica

La Junta Directiva de Paratransit, Inc., aprovecha esta oportunidad para
expresar una de sus mayores prioridades en el area del funcionamiento de
programas financiadaos por el gobierno federal (es decir, empleo y formacion,
servicios comunitarios, etc.) Esta prioridad esta asegurando que la
Administracion de Paratransit, Inc., y los programas de fondos federales
administrados por Paratransit, Inc.,operen con el objetivo comun de proporcionar
igualdad de oportunidad con fondos federales al personal y a los participantes.

Paratransit, Inc., tomara medida positiva hacia la eliminacion de barreras
arquitectonicas y lograr la igualdad de oportunidad a traves de su continuo
procedimiento de su programa de accion afimativa. Paratransit Inc. tambien
tomara medidas positivas para lograr sus objetivos de el programa y para
asegurar que ninguna persona sea discriminada por sexo, edad, raza, credo,
color, discapacidad, religion, origen nacional, orientacion sexual, afiliacion
politica o creencia o herencia, por la ley de derechos civiles de 1964 (como se
indica en el titulo Vi del Acto). La Junta Directiva tambien especificamente
prohibe cualquier forma de acoso sexual dentro de Paratransit, Inc., o cualquier
programa financiado por el gobierno federal.

2.0 Aplicabilidad

Esta politica aplica a cualquier miembro del personal, participante en, o aspirante
a cualquier programa financiado por el gobiermno federal operado o administrado
por Paratransit, Inc.

2.1 El Coordinador de los Derechos Civiles de Paratransit, Inc., esta designado
para coordinar e investigar acusaciones de incumplimiento de la Politica de No
Discriminacion y en el Titulo VI Proteccion de los Derechos Civiles.

2.2 Informacion acerca de esta politica puede obtenerse con el Coordinador de
los Derechos Civiles via telefono: Voz: (916) 429-2009 ext. 7302; TDD: 429-
2568; FAX: 429-2409



R

Paratransit, Inc.

Procedimiento de Aplicacion para la Politica de No
Discriminacion y el Titulo VI de Proteccion de los Derechos
Civiles

3.0 Procedimiento de Quejas

3.1 Las denuncias de incumplimiento con esta politica deberan ser
firmadas por la persona aplicable y enviado por correo a la direccion siguiente
dentro de 180 dias de la fecha de la supuesta discriminacion. La denuncia
escrita debe contener la siguiente informacion:

s Su nombre, direccion y informacion de como contactarlo (por ejemplo
numero de telefono, direccion de correo electronico, etc.)

e Como, cuando, donde y porque crees que fuiste discriminado. Incluye
la localizacion, nombres e informacion de contacto de testigos.

Esta informacion debe proporcionar suficiente detalle para ayudar a que el
investigador designado encuentre una resolucion pronta y equitativa y;si aplica,
el remedio especifico solicitado por el demandante.

La queja puede ser presentada a traves de varios metodos:

Por escrito: Paratransit, Inc
Coordinador de Derechos Civiles
P.O. Box 231100
Sacramento, California 95823-0401

Descargar y Completar un Formulario Imprimible: En linea en
www.paratransit.org en formato PDF.

Por email: paratransit@paratransit.org
Por Telefono: (916) 429-2009
Por Fax: (916) 429-2409
Por TTD: (916) 429-2568

Asistencia de Quejas: Personal de Paratransit le asistira a escribir una queja si la
demandante no es capaz de hacerlo.

Demandantes tambien pueden presentar una queja de Titulo VI con una entidad
externa como el FTA, otra agencia federal o estatal o corte federal o del estado.
Sin embargo, si una denuncia es presentada con la Ciudad y una entidad
externa al mismo tiempo, la demanda externa sustituira a denuncia de la Ciudad.



Paratransit, Inc. |
Procedimiento de aplicacion para la politica de No
discriminacion y el Titulo VI de Proteccion de los Derechos
Civiles

y la Ciudad suspenderan los procedimientos de queja pendiente de los
resultados de la entidad externa.

El demandante tambien sera informado de su derecho de apelar la peticion
a las autoridades federal y estatal segun corresponda. La Ciudad utilizara
sus mejores esfuerzos para responder a una queja del titulo VI dentro de
sesenta (60) dias habiles aver recibido tal queja, a menos que una queja
sea archivada con la ciudad y una entidad externa al mismo tiempo como
se indico anteriormente.

Ademas ala queja procesada en la Ciudad, el demandante puede
presentar una queja del Titulo VI con el:

Departamento de Transporte de los Estados Unidos
Administracion Federal de Transito

Oficina de Derecho Civil, Region IX

201 Mission Street, Suite 1650

San Francisco, California 94105-1839.

3.2 Las siguientes definiciones controla los plazos de procedimiento de
quejas:

3.2.1 El dia de recibido la denuncia por parte de Paratransito, Inc., sera la
fecha de archivo de la denuncia.

3.2.2 Un dia laboral es un dia cuando |a oficina administrative de
Paratransit Inc. esta abierto, que es entre 8:00 a.m. y 5:00 a.m. Lunes al
Viernes, excepto dias festivos.

3.3 Silos detalles de la acusacion son suficientes, inmediatamente se
investigara la denuncia y una respuesta se le enviara a la demandante
dentro de los treinta (30) dias despues de la Fecha archivada.

3.4 Silos detalles de la acusacion son insuficientes, el demandante
debera ser notificado por escrito dentro de quince (15) dias habiles
después de la fecha del archivo con la informacion adicional especifica
que necesitamos para completer el proceso.



e

Paratransit, Inc.

Procedimiento de aplicacion para la politica de No
discriminacion y el Titulo VI de Proteccion de los Derechos
Civiles

3.4.1 Si el demandante no proporciona la informacion adicional necesaria
dentro de los treinta (30) dias despues de la fecha de archivo, la queja
sera cerrada.

3.4.2 Si el demandante proporciona la informacion adicional necesaria
para completar la denuncia, debera ser investigado inmediatamente y una
respuesta se le enviara al demandante no mas tardar de sesenta (60) dias
habiles despues de la fecha del archivo.

3.5 Todas las respuestas por escrito a las alegaciones de discriminacion
se sometera a revision por el personal legal de Paratransit, Inc., antes de
ser enviados a cualquier demandante. Las acciones disciplinarias
administradas a los empleados de Paratransit, Inc., resultantes de este
procedimientos de queja no seran reveladas.

4.0 Aviso

La poiitica de Paratransit, Inc., de No discriminacion y Titulo Vi
Protecciones de Derechos Civiles se publicaran en el Paratransit, Inc.,
Polizas Relacionadas al Servicio de los Usuarios de Paratransity
puede ser modificado de vez en cuando. El Acuerdo de Negociacion
Colectiva entre Paratransit, /nc., y la Union de los Conductores contiene
una implementacion similar de polica de no discriminacion aplicable a
ambas partes. Este procedimiento de aplicacion debe ser proporcionada
de acuerdo a la peticion, en formatos accesibles segun sea necesario, a
las personas correspondientes y otras personas interesadas.

Adjunto: Titulo VI Forma de Denuncia



Paratransit, Inc. JELEREIE REREREBRNITIER
HEFiERF

HABTFABRMIGIEEREMARSEE, UESRERZBIE 180 RABFEUAT L, EE
BELGEBSUTER  EHMa, Mt REHEER (FINEFERE. EFEHHE) ; &
RABCRIEMRMARX. B, HhENRRE, FRUEMAZAMMEL, B2MBIKRERA, L
BHEREEONVAE - DEDEERASERINE - AFNBRAE  WEBANERLT - 8
R AS K ERFHRIER -

BEFAI LB A ZEAXIREY : 2@ : Paratransit, Inc. R#EEA S P.O. ERES 58 231100 fE =L
FI+E. AN 95823-0401 T EIFIBR AIFIENFRAE : 5/ www.paratransit.org TE#R#EHR PDF X, &

#8 : paratransit@paratransit.org & as : (916) 429-2009 {HE : (916) 429-2409 & umEEE : (916) 429-
2568

RERIHE) - NRIEFNEERERIRGR, BBEERM (Paratransit) TEA B IHBEERRF. &
SRAM AT LIRSV EREEAE (BIANESF R BEIRD (FTA). HMBFRSONEE, SEBREMER) 12X
EINE (Title VI) %5F. B2, MNREEFFRITEAFMIERMBIRR R, RSB IRER S IR T BURF

B¥ER, I B TBUFRIRRIEFISEE, FHMDRBUREER - RRABRRSNEGER

BEROEANNE BB R E _E5F - BRIEIEFINRIFAZL R R A T B A BR A AEIR R, &

A BT RR RS DE KRB EAERFRAT (60) BTEXRAEE. MRABAMRGFERN

BIRAZEA AR T #BRRERNERF | ZERER B ENEER RIERAE

LT ERIEHIEARRRIZFEEZTHE : Paratransit, Inc. IEIIEIZEHM B A AIEIEIRZ B,

T £ B 2148 Paratransit, Inc. {TTEGRAERMABE R, BLEA—ZF AR EF 8:.00 E 4 5:00, BRHERK
&,

INRIEEME RS, BILRREREE  WERRXHHE=1 30) B LEXRNBEZBEHTHEPHFA

HEEMETE BERXBHRTE (15)EATAERRUSELNENBEFA  SHEHRTE
BB AREN.

MEHRFARBARIBHER=T 30) BTEXANREEMEES , HIPFHERER. WRPHA
RETHRER  REILRRAE  WERIKHHPAENT (60) BLAEXRNBZBEHTHEPHFA

FrEHBRIEIENEEDEREESHEMEBHFAZE, HELIA Paratransit, Inc. ;EZTFFA BB
Paratransit, Inc. E TR AR FEFMZ RN EEI BT FIBE.

Paratransit, Inc. BIFELRBUR TN /N E REREBCRFETE Paratransit, Inc. B Paratransit IR7E A A
FHBBE AR , WATRETFEET. Paratransit, Inc. BT T & 2 MM ERAHIGELSEA



MREHFFELREREEK, ABEREFEREBFAASMNEMMBRAALIGER, LUAFRMER

=,



Paratransit, Inc. Cov txheej txheem ua raws li txoj cai ntawm kev tsis muaj kev ntxub ntxaug thiab Title VI
Civil Rights Protection

Cov txheej txheem tsis txaus siab

Cov lus iab liam tias tsis ua raws li txoj cai no yuav tsum tau kos npe los ntawm tus neeg siv thiab xa mus
rau ghov chaw nyob hauv gab no tsis pub dhau 180 hnub txij li hnub raug liam tias muaj kev ntxub
ntxaug. Daim ntawv foob yuav tsum muaj cov ntaub ntawv hauv gab no: . Koj lub npe, chaw nyob, thiab
yuav tiv tauj koj li cas (xws li xov tooj, email chaw nyob, thiab Iwm yam) Yuav ua li cas, thaum twg, ghov
twg, thiab vim li cas koj ntseeg tias koj raug kev ntxub ntxaug. suav nrog ghov chaw, npe, thiab cov
ntaub ntawv tiv tauj ntawm ib tus neeg tim khawv. Cov ntaub ntawv no yuav tsum muaj cov ncauj lus
kom ntxaws txaus los pab tus neeg tshawb nrhiav nrhiav kev daws teeb meem sai thiab ncaj ncees,
thiab, yog tias tsim nyog, cov kev kho tshwj xeeb nrhiav los ntawm tus neeg tsis txaus siab.

Qhov kev tsis txaus siab yuav raug foob los ntawm ntau txoj hauv kev: Sau ntawv: Paratransit, Inc. Civil
Rights Coordinator P.O. Box 231100 Sacramento, California 95823-0401 Rub tawm thiab ua kom tiav
Daim Ntawv Sau Npe: Online ntawm www.paratransit.org ua ib daim ntawv PDF. Email:
paratransit@paratransit.org Xov tooj: (916) 429-2009 Fax: (916) 429-2409 Los ntawm TTD: (916) 429-
2568

Kev Pab Tsis Txaus Siab: Cov neeg ua haujlwm Paratransit yuav pab sau ntawv tsis txaus siab yog tias tus
neeg tsis txaus siab ua tsis tau. Cov neeg tsis txaus siab kuj tuaj yeem xa daim ntawv tsis txaus siab Title
VI nrog rau lwm lub koom haum xws li FTA, Iwm lub koomhaum tseemfwv lossis lub xeev, lossis
tsoomfwv lossis lub tsev hais plaub. Txawm li cas los xij, yog tias ghov kev tsis txaus siab raug xa mus rau
Lub Nroog thiab ib lub koom haum sab nraud ib txhij, ghov kev tsis txaus siab sab nraud yuav hloov pauv
lub nroog ghov kev tsis txaus siab thiab Lub Nroog cov txheej txheem kev tsis txaus siab yuav raug ncua
vim ghov kev tshawb pom sab nraud. Tus neeg tsis txaus siab kuj yuav raug ghia txog nws txoj cai thov
rov hais dua cov lus teb rau tsoomfwv thiab lub xeev cov cai raws li ghov tsim nyog. Lub Nroog yuav siv
nws txoj kev siv zog zoo tshaj plaws los teb cov lus tsis txaus siab Title VI hauv rau caum (60) hnub ua
haujlwm ntawm nws tau txais cov lus tsis txaus siab no, tshwj tsis yog tias muaj kev tsis txaus siab rau
Lub Nroog thiab ib lub koom haum sab nraud ib txhij raws li tau sau tseg yav dhau los. Ntxiv rau cov
txheej txheem tsis txaus siab ntawm Lub Nroog, tus neeg tsis txaus siab tuaj yeem xa daim ntawv tsis
txaus siab Title VI nrog rau: U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Transit Administration Office of
Civil Rights

Cov ntsiab lus hauv gab no tswj lub sijhawm ntawm cov txheej txheem tsis txaus siab no: Hnub uas tau
txais los ntawm Paratransit, Inc., ntawm ghov kev iab liam yuav yog Hnub Caiv ntawm ghov kev iab liam.

Ib hnub ua lag luam yog ib hnub thaum Paratransit, Inc., chaw ua haujlwm ghib, uas yog thaum 8:00
teev sawv ntxov txog 5:00 teev tsaus ntuj. Monday txog Friday, tsis suav cov hnub so.

Yog tias cov ntsiab lus sib liam txaus, ghov kev iab liam yuav raug tshawb xyuas tam sim ntawd thiab cov
lus teb yuav raug xa mus rau tus neeg tsis txaus siab tsis pub dhau peb caug (30) hnub ua haujlwm tom
gab Hnub Ua Haujlwm.

Yog tias cov ntsiab lus sib liam tsis txaus, tus neeg tsis txaus siab yuav tsum tau sau ntawv ceeb toom ua
ntej kaum tsib (15) hnub ua haujlwm tom gab Hnub Ua Haujlwm ntawm cov ntaub ntawv tshwj xeeb uas
xav tau los ua kom tiav.



Yog tias tus neeg tsis txaus siab tsis muab cov ntaub ntawv xav tau ntxiv hauv peb caug (30) hnub ua
haujlwm tom gab Hnub Ua Haujlwm, ghov kev tsis txaus siab yuav raug kaw. Yog tias tus neeg tsis txaus
siab muab cov ntaub ntawv ntxiv uas xav tau los ua kom tiav ghov kev iab liam, nws yuav tsum raug
tshawb xyuas tam sim ntawd thiab yuav tsum xa cov lus teb rau tus neeg tsis txaus siab tsis pub dhau rau
caum (60) hnub ua haujlwm tom gab Hnub Ua Haujlwm.

Tag nrho cov lus teb rau cov lus iab liam ntawm kev ntxub ntxaug yuav tsum raug tshuaj xyuas los
ntawm Paratransit, Inc., cov neeg ua haujlwm raug cai ua ntej xa mus rau ib tus neeg tsis txaus siab. Kev
ghuab ntuas tswj hwm rau cov neeg ua haujlwm ntawm Paratransit, Inc., uas tshwm sim los ntawm cov
txheej txheem tsis txaus siab no yuav tsis raug ghia tawm.

Paratransit, Inc., Txoj Cai ntawm Kev Tsis Sib Haum Xeeb thiab Title VI Civil Rights Protections yuav tsum
tau tshaj tawm nyob rau hauv Paratransit, Inc., Txoj Cai cuam tshuam rau cov neeg siv ntawm
Paratransit Cov Kev Pabcuam raws li nws yuav raug hloov kho raws sijhawm. Daim Ntawv Cog Lus Sib
Tham Sib Tham Ntawm Paratransit, Inc., thiab Pawg Neeg Tsav Tsheb muaj ib txoj cai zoo sib xws uas tsis
muaj kev ntxub ntxaug siv tau rau ob tog. Cov txheej txheem kev siv no yuav tsum tau muab raws li ghov
kev thov, hauv cov gauv siv tau raws li ghov tsim nyog, rau cov neeg siv thiab lwm cov neeg nyiam.



Mpoueaypa peannsaumm NoJANTUKN HEAUCKPUMMUHALMK M 3aLWNTLI TParKaaHCKMX npaB Paratransit, Inc.
Mpoueaypa nogaum Kanoboi

3anBaeHune o HecobaAeHNN HACTOALLEN NOAUTUKMN A0NKHO 6bITb MOAMNMCAHO COOTBETCTBYHOLLUM
JIMLLOM W OTMPaB/IEHO MO MOYTE MO YKa3saHHOMY HUXKe agpecy B TedyeHue 180 aHel ¢ aatbl
npegnosiaraemoi AUCKpUMMUHaAUUK. NTMCbmeHHOoe 3asBNeHMe LO0MKHO COAEepPKaTb CeAyoLLY0
nHpopmauumio: Bale nms, agpec 1 cnocob ceA3u ¢ Bamu (Hanpumep, Homep TenedpoHa, agpec
3/1EKTPOHHOW NoYTbl U T. 4.). Kak, Koraa, rae v noyemy, No Bawemy MHEHWto, Bbl NOABEPI/INUCH
ANCKPUMUHAUMW. YKAXKUTE MECTOHAXOXKAEHNE, UMEHA U KOHTaKTHYI0 MHGOPMALLMIO BCEX CBUAETENEN.
3T1a MHGOpMaUMA A0MKHA BbITb OCTAaTOMHO NOAPO6HOM, YTOOLI NOMOYb Ha3HAYEHHOMY CNef0BaTeNtO
HalTK BbICTPOE M CNpaBes/IMBOE PeLleHne, a TaKKe, eC/iv MPUMEHUMO, KOHKPETHOEe CPeLCTBO NPaBoOBOWA
3aWmThl, Tpebyemoe xanobou.

anoby MoXKHO NoaaTb HECKOIbKMMU cnocobamu: B nncemeHHon popme: Paratransit, Inc.,
KoopauHaTop no rpakaaHckum npasam, a/a. Awmk 231100, CakpameHTto, KaandpopHus, 95823-0401.
CkayvaiTe v 3anosiHuTe GopMy A4J1A NeYaTn: OHNaMH Ha cante www.paratransit.org 8 ¢opmate PDF.
JNneKTpoHHan noyTa: paratransit@paratransit.org. Mo TenedoHy: (916) 429-2009.

Momolb B HanMcaHMM }Kanob: coTpyaHUKM Paratransit nomoryT Bam HanucaTb *Kanoby, eciv 3aaBuUTeNb
He MOXET CcAeNaTb 3TO CaMOCTOATE/IbHO. 3afABUTE/IN TaK}Ke MOryT NoAaTh Kanoby B COOTBETCTBUM C
Pasgenom VI BO BHELLHIOK opraHmM3auuio, Hanpumep, B PesepanbHoe yrnpaBaeHMe No TPAaHCNopTy
(FTA), apyroe desepanbHOE UNU PETMOHANBHOE areHTCTBO, UK B defepasbHblii UAM PETMOHANbHbIN
cya. OgHakKo, ecnu xanoba nogaHa 0AHOBPEMEHHO B ropo/, U BHELLHIO OpraHn3aumio, BHELWHAS
*Kanoba byaet umeTb NPUOPUTET Hag, rOPOACKOM Kanoboii, N ropoAcKkue npoueaypbl PaCCMOTPEHMS
»Kanob 6yayT NPUOCTaHOBNEHbI 40 BbIHECEHUA PELIEHUS BHELLHEN OpraHu3aUmeit. 3aaBUTENIO TaKKe
6yaeT coobleHo o ero/ee npase 063KaoBaTbh OTBET B dpeAepasibHbIX M PEerMoHasibHbIX OpraHax B
cny4yae HeobxoaumocTu. Fopoa NPUNOKNUT BCE YCUAMA ANA OTBETA Ha *Kanoby no Pasgeny VI B TeyeHune
wectnaecatn (60) paboumx AHEN C MOMEHTa NOAYYEHUN TaKOMW XKanobbl, 38 UCK/IOYEHUEM C/TYYaEB,
Koraa kanoba nogaHa o4HOBPEMEHHO B [OpOA M BHELLHIO OpraHM3aumio, Kak yKa3aHo paHee.
Mommnmo npoueaypbl Nogaun Kanobbl B lopoa, 3aaBUTEIb MOXKET NOAATb ¥Kanoby no Pasgeny VI B:
MwuHuctepcteo TpaHcnopTa CLUA, ®eaepansHoe ynpasaeHue TpaH3uTa, YNpasieHWe no rparKgaHCKnUm
npasam.

CpOKI/I paccmoTpeHunA AaHHOﬁ *anobbl onpegenarTca chegyrowmmm onpegeneHnamn: JeHb
nony4vyeHuA KomnaHuewn Paratransit, Inc. 3asaBneHuna cunmTtaetcs Ll,aTOVI noaayu 3aAaBaeHnA.

Pabounm gHem cumTaeTcs AeHb paboTbl a4MUHUCTPATMBHOTO oduca Paratransit, Inc., To ectb ¢ 8:00 go
17:00 c noHegeNnbHUKa NO NATHULY, 3a UCKNOYEHNEM NPA3AHUYHbIX AHEN.

Echn nHdopmaumsa o 3asBeHUMM A0CTaTouYHa, OHO byaeT Hemed/leHHO pacc/efoBaHo, U OTBeT byaer
oTnpaBAeH 3adaBMTeNt0 NO NoYTe B TedyeHue Tpnauat (30) paboumx gHen ¢ gaTbl NOLAUYN 3aABEHUS.



Ecnu cBegeHuit o 3a8BAEHNN HEAOCTATOYHO, 3aABUTE/b A0/IKEH ObITb YBEAOM/IEH B MUCbMEHHOM
dopme B TeueHUe nATHaauUaTh (15) pabounx AHel ¢ AaTbl NoAaun }Kanobbl 0 HeobxoanuMoWn
[0NONHUTENbHOM MHbOPMaUUK.

Ecnn 3aAaBMTENb HE NPEefOCTaBUT HEODXOANMYIO AONONHUTENBHYIO MHOOPMALMIO B TEYEHWUE TPUALLATH
(30) paboumx aHeli c AaTbl NOAAYM Kanobbl, paccMOTpeHUe Kanobbl byaeT 3akpbITo. Ecaun 3assuTens
npeoCTaBUT AOMNONHUTE/IbHYIO MHPOPMALLMIO, HEOBXOANMYIO A5 3aBEPLUEHUA 33aABAEHMA, NO HEMY
byaeT npoBeaeHO Hemed/leHHOE paccnefoBaHWe, M OTBET byeT OTNPaB/IEH 3aABUTENIO MO NoYTe He
nosaHee wectngecatn (60) pabounx AHen ¢ AaTbl NoAa4YM Kanobbl.

Bce nucbMeHHble OTBETbI Ha 3aAB/IEHNA O ANCKPUMMHALMW SOKHbI ObITb PACCMOTPEHbI FOPUCTAMM
Paratransit, Inc. nepea oTnpaBKon 3aaBUTEN0. JMCUMNANHAPHbBIE MEPbI, MPUHATbIE B OTHOLIEHMWM
COTPYAHMKOB Paratransit, Inc. B pe3ynbTaTe AaHHOW NpoLeaypbl PAaCCMOTPEHMSA Kanobbl, He byayT
pasrnawarbCes.

Monutnka KomnaHuu Paratransit, Inc. B OTHOWEHUN HEAUCKPUMUHALMM U 3aLLMUTbI FPaXKAAHCKUX NPas,
npeaycmoTtpeHHas Pasgenom VI, byaeTt onybankosaHa B AoKymeHTe «lMonutuka Paratransit, Inc. B
OTHOLLEHMUM MHAUBMAYANbHbIX NONb30BaTe el ycnyr Paratransity ¢ y4eTom BO3MOXKHbIX U3MEHEHWIA.
KonnekTuBHbIM fOroBop mexay KomnaHuein Paratransit, Inc. u npodcotosom BoamTenen cogeprut
aHaNIOMMYHYIO MONUTUKY HEAUCKPUMMHALMM, MPUMEHUMYIO K 06enm cTopoHam. HacToswasa npoueaypa
peanunsauuun byaeT npefocTaBAATLCA MO 3aNPOCy B AOCTYNHbIX GOpMaTax COOTBETCTBYHOLLMM NLLAM U
OPYTMM 3aUHTEPECOBAHHbIM NULAM.



Quy trinh Thuce hién Chinh sdch Khdng Phan biét D& x(r va Bdo vé Quyén Cong dan theo Diéu VI cla
Paratransit, Inc.

Quy trinh Khiéu nai

Cdc khiéu nai vé viéc khong tuan thl chinh sach nay phai duvoc ngudi cé tham quyén ky va glri dén dia
chi duéi day trong vong 180 ngay ké tir ngay xay ra hanh vi phan biét d6i xtr. Pon khiéu nai bang van
ban phai bao gdbm cdc thdng tin sau: . Tén, dia chi cda ban va cach thirc lién hé véi ban (vi du: s6 dién
thoai, dia chi email, v.v.) Cach thirc, thoi gian, dia diém va ly do ban tin rdng minh d3 bj phan biét doi xcr.
Bao gém dia diém, tén va théng tin lién lac cha bat ky nhan chirng ndo. Thdng tin nay phai cung cap du
chi tiét dé gitp diéu tra viéen duoc chi dinh tim ra gidi phap nhanh chéng va cdng bang, va, néu cd thé,
bién phap khac phuc cu thé ma ngudi khi€u nai yéu cau.

Khi€u nai c6 thé dugc ndp theo mdt s& phuong phap: Bang vin ban: Diéu phdi vién Quyén Cong dan cla
Paratransit, Inc. P.O. Box 231100 Sacramento, California 95823-0401 Tai xudng va Pién vao Mau don Cé
thé In: Tryc tuyén tai www.paratransit.org dudi dang tai liéu PDF. Email: paratransit@paratransit.org
Qua dién thoai: (916) 429-2009 Qua fax: (916) 429-2409 Qua TTD: (916) 429-2568

H6 tro Khi€u nai: Nhan vién Paratransit s& ho tro viét don khi€u nai néu ngudi khi€u nai khéng thé ty
viét. Ngudi khiéu nai cling cé thé ndp don khiéu nai theo Muc VI cho mét don vi bén ngoai nhu FTA, co
quan lién bang hodc ti€u bang khac, hodc tda an lién bang hodc ti€u bang. Tuy nhién, néu khiéu nai duwoc
ndp déng thdi cho Thanh phé va mot don vi bén ngoai, don khi€u nai bén ngoai sé thay thé don khiéu
nai ca Thanh phé va cac tha tuc khi€u nai ciia Thanh phd sé bj dinh chi cho dén khi cé két ludn cha don
vi bén ngoai. Ngudi khiéu nai cling s& duwoc thong bao vé quyén khang cdo phan hoi Ién cac co quan lién
bang va tiéu bang néu phu hop. Thanh phd s& nd luc hét strc dé tra 1o khi€u nai theo Muc VI trong vong
sau muoi (60) ngay lam viéc ké tir ngay nhan duoc khi€u nai, trir khi khiéu nai dwoc nép déng thoi cho
Thanh phé va mét don vi bén ngoai nhuw d3 néu trwdc d6. Ngoai quy trinh khi€u nai tai Thanh phd, ngudi
khi€u nai cé thé ndp don khiéu nai theo Quy dinh VI t&i: Bd Giao thdng Van tai Hoa Ky, Cuc Quan ly Van
tai Lién bang, Van phong Dan quyén

Cac dinh nghia sau day chi phdi méc thai gian cla quy trinh khiéu nai nay: Ngay Paratransit, Inc. nhan

dugc khiéu nai s& la Ngay Nop don khiéu nai.

Ngay lam viéc |a ngdy van phong hanh chinh cla Paratransit, Inc. m& ctra, tir 8:00 sang dén 5:00 chiéu tir
Th& Hai dén Thi Sau, trir ngay |&.

N&u chi tiét khi€u nai day du, khiéu nai s& dugc diéu tra ngay 1ap tirc va phan hoi s& dugc giri qua thu
cho ngudi khi€u nai trong vong ba muoi (30) ngay lam viéc sau Ngay Nop don.

Né&u chi tiét khi€u nai khong day du, ngudi khiéu nai s& duoc thdng bao bang van ban trong vong mudi
I&m (15) ngay lam viéc sau Ngay Nop don vé cdc thong tin b6 sung cu thé can thiét dé hoan thién don
khi€u nai.

Né&u ngudi khiéu nai khéng cung cap théng tin bé sung can thiét trong vong ba muoi (30) ngay lam viéc
sau Ngay ndp don, khiéu nai sé dugc déng lai. NEu ngudi khiéu nai cung cip théng tin bé sung can thiét



dé hoan tat khiéu nai, khiéu nai s& dwoc diéu tra ngay lap tirc va phan hoi s& dugc glri qua dudng buu
dién cho ngudi khi€u nai chAm nhat 13 sdu muoi (60) ngay |am viéc sau Ngay ndp don.

T4t ca cac phan hoi bang van ban vé cac cdo budc phan biét ddi xtr s& duoc doi ngli phéap ly cla
Paratransit, Inc. xem xét trwédc khi glri cho ngudi khiéu nai. Cac bién phap ky luat dugc ap dung ddi vai
nhan vién cla Paratransit, Inc., phat sinh tir quy trinh khiéu nai nay s& khdng dugc tiét 16.

Chinh sach cua Paratransit, Inc. vé Khéng phan biét d6i x(r va Quyén bao vé Dan quyén theo Tiéu dé VI
s& duwoc cong bd trong Chinh sach cda Paratransit, Inc. lién quan dén Ngudi dung Ca nhan cuda Dich vu
Paratransit khi dwoc sira d6i theo thoi gian. Thda thuan Thuong luvgng Tap thé gilra Paratransit, Inc. va
céng doan Tai x& co chinh sach khong phan biét déi x&r twong ty ap dung cho ca hai bén. Quy trinh thyuc
hién nay s& dwoc cung cap theo yéu cau, & cac dinh dang cé thé truy cap duwoc khi can thiét, cho nhirng
nguoi co lién quan va nhitng ngudi quan tam khac.



Paratransit, Inc.
Board of Directors Staff Report
Agenda Item 8A

AGENDA TITLE: Consideration of the Presented Slate of Officers,
Open Nominations from the Floor and Election of

Officers of the Board of Directors for Calendar Year
2026

MEETING DATE: February 12, 2026

PREPARED BY: Tiffani M. Scott, President and CEO

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Consideration of the Presented Slate of Officers, open nominations for each
of the three offices: Chair, Vice-Chair, Secretary/Treasurer of the Board and
conduct elections. Upon appointment, the officers shall become effective the
day following the meeting (February 13, 2026). This will allow for all actions
taken by the Board at the February meeting to be signed consistently for
audit records.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION:

The officers of the corporation shall be a Chair of the Board, a Vice Chair of
the Board, Secretary/Treasurer of the Board. The Chair of the Board shall
report their nomination for officers of the corporation for consideration.
Officers shall serve at the pleasure of the Board.

A definition of the duties of each officer position is listed below:

Chair of the Board: The Chair of the Board shall direct the affairs of
the corporation with other elected officers and Board members by
presiding at all regular meetings of the corporation and of the Board;
shall, with ratification of the Board, appoint persons to all Committees.



Vice Chair of the Board: The Vice Chair of the Board shall preside at
meetings in the absence of the Chair and assist the Chair as needed.
The Vice Chair shall assume the duties of the Chair if the position is
vacated.

Secretary/Treasurer of the Board: The Secretary/Treasurer of the
Board shall maintain a record of the proceedings of all meetings of the
Board. The Secretary/Treasurer shall maintain a complete up-to-date,
and accurate record of the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, and any
amendments to the Bylaws and file with the Secretary of State any
amendments to the Articles of Incorporation. Additionally, the
Secretary/ Treasurer shall receive a report quarterly on the financial
statement of the corporation for the Board from the Chief Financial
Officer and more frequently as requested by the Board. The books and
records of the corporation in the hands of the Secretary/ Treasurer
shall be open to inspection at all times to the directors. There shall be
an annual audit by a certified public accountant.

The slate of officers presented for consideration is:

Chair of the Board: Kim Tucker
Vice Chair of the Board: Jim Alves
Secretary/Treasurer of the Board: Patrick Mulvaney

The Board may move the presented slate or chose to open nominations from
the floor.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

ATTACHMENTS:

None



Paratransit, Inc.
Board of Directors Staff Report
Agenda Item 8B

AGENDA TITLE: Discussion on Board Meeting Dates and Times and
Adopt the Board Meeting Schedule for the remainder
of 2026 and for 2027

MEETING DATE: February 12, 2026

PREPARED BY: Chris M. Brown, SHRM-SCP, SPHR, Assistant Secretary
of the Board of Directors

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Discussion on Board Meeting dates and times and adopt the Board Meeting
schedule for the remainder of 2026 and for 2027.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION:

Annually, executive staff prepares the meeting calendar for the Board of
Directors. Staff has received a request from Board Members to re-visit the
existing meeting date schedule and meeting times for consideration of
alternatives. Currently, the Board meets on the third Monday of the month
(other than February) at 6:00 p.m. The Board may choose any day and time
to meet.

Upon discussion and consensus, staff recommends the Board adopt a
calendar for the remainder of 2026 and for all of 2027.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None
ATTACHMENTS:

None



	Agenda Item 1 - Agenda February 12 Board Meeting.pdf
	Agenda Item 5A - CEO Report.pdf
	Paratransit, Inc.
	Agenda Item 5A
	PARTNERSHIPS AND OPPORTUNITIES:


	Agenda Item 5B(a)1 - CFO Staff Report 20260212.pdf
	Agenda Item 5B(a)2 - 20260212 Feb CFO Board Presentation.pdf
	Agenda Item 5B(a)3 - Dec 2025 PI Balance Sheet.pdf
	Agenda Item 5B(a)4 - Dec 2025 PI Income Statement.pdf
	Agenda Item 5B(b)1 - CFO Staff Report - Audit 20260212.pdf
	Agenda Item 5B(b)2 - Paratransit Audited Financial Statements 2024-25.pdf
	Agenda Item 6A - December 2025 Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Agenda Item 6C- Grants Memo.pdf
	Agenda Item 6C- Grants Resolution.pdf
	Agenda Item 6D - Title VI Plan 2026-2029 Memo.pdf
	Agenda Item 6D - Title VI Plan 2026-2029 Resolution.pdf
	Agenda Item 6D-Title VI Program 2026-2029.pdf
	Title VI Program 2026-2029
	1.0 Introduction
	2.0 General Requirements
	3 Description of Service
	4 General Reporting Requirements

	Signed FTA Certs and Assurances
	Category 1. Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant.
	1.1. Standard Assurances.
	1.2. Standard Assurances: Additional Assurances for Construction Projects.
	1.3. Procurement.
	1.4. Increased Micro-Purchase Threshold.
	1.5. Suspension and Debarment.
	1.6. Lobbying.
	1.6.1. Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements.
	1.6.2. Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance.

	1.7. Real Property Use

	Category 2. Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans
	Category 3. Tax Liability and Felony Convictions.
	Category 4. Private Sector Protections.
	4.1. Charter Service Agreement.
	4.2. School Bus Agreement.

	Category 5. Transit Asset Management Plan.
	Category 6. Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing.
	6.1. Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews.
	6.2. Bus Testing.

	Category 7. Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program.
	Category 8. Formula Grants for Rural Areas.
	Category 9. Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program.
	Category 10. Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs.
	Category 11. Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Programs.
	Category 12. State of Good Repair Grants.
	Category 13. Infrastructure Finance Programs.
	Category 14. Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing.
	Category 15. Rail Safety Training and Oversight.
	Category 16. Demand Responsive Service.
	Category 17. Interest and Financing Costs.
	Category 18. Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and Operations.
	Category 19. Public Transportation on Indian Reservations Formula and Discretionary Program (Tribal Transit Programs).
	Category 20. Emergency Relief Program.

	Title VI Program 2026-2029
	Policy-on-Non-Discrimination-English
	Policy-on-Non-Discrimination-Spanish
	Non- Discrimiation Policy in Chinese
	Non- Discrimiation Policy in Hmong
	Non- Discrimiation Policy in Russian
	Non- Discrimiation Policy in Vietnamese
	Title VI Program 2026-2029
	Title-VI-Implementation-Procedure-English
	Title-VI-Implementation-Spanish
	Title VI Implementation Procedure Chinese
	Title VI Implementation Procedure Hmong
	Title VI Implementation Procedure Russian
	Title VI Implementation Procedure Vietnamese

	Agenda Item 8A - Nominations and Elections of Officers.pdf
	Agenda Item 8B - Board Meeting Calendar Memo.pdf



